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Have a fresh
£ M E R

CP Lotus is determined to offer customers with the
fresh and pleasurable shopping experience via our great
variety of high-quality merchandise at saving price, the
clean, tidy and comfortable environment, as well as
warm and friendly service. Each year over 300 million
customers enjoy their shopping at CP Lotus.

C.P. Corporate University (operated by a subsidiary

of CP Lotus) received 2017 CCFA Excellent Corporate
University Talent Development Award during 2017.
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Our Company
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C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”) is one of the leading retail operators in
China. As at the date of the Chairman’s Statement, CP Lotus owns and operates
70 retail stores and 2 shopping malls under the brand name “Lotus”, offering
fresh and pleasurable shopping experience to all families by providing a neat and
comfortable environment, an assortment of high-quality and safe merchandise,
and a warm and friendly service.

Our ultimate controlling shareholder, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CP Group”), is one of the leading conglomerates in Asia with over 90 years of
operating experience in various industries including Agro-Industry & Food, retail
and telecom. While the CP Group is headquartered in Thailand, it is one of the
largest and oldest foreign investors in China today.
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Store Network
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Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

| am delighted the Group had a good year building a solid
foundation and returned to profitability.

Operating Environment

In 2017, China’s gross domestic products (“GDP”) grew by
6.9% to approximately RMB82.7 trillion, representing an
increase of 0.2 percentage point compared to last year, its
first acceleration in growth in seven years; disposal income
also increased by 7.3% as a result of the steady growth of
the economy. The overall consumer price index (“CPI”) was
up by 1.6% compared to the previous year while the food
CPl increased by 1.5%.

Total retail sales of consumer goods in China reached
RMB36.6 trillion, a growth of 10.2% year on year of which
RMBY7.2 trillion came from online sales, an increase of 32.2%
compared to last year. According to the China National
Commercial Information Centre, the sales growth of 100 key
retailers rose 2.8%.

Business Review

The Group recorded revenue of RMB9,655.2 million and a
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB179.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 compared to a loss of RMB537.6 million (including
a non-cash impairment loss of RMB351.2 million) in 2016.
As outlined here in the 2016 Annual Report, the Group
developed a strategic turnaround plan after carrying out a
deep and wide-ranging review of the business, its strength,
shortcomings, opportunities and threats. Since setting out
our strategic turnaround plan, excellent progress has been
made across many of the key pillars that underpin the
strategy. This has been reflected in robust cost reduction at
both head office and store level as a result of a leaner and
more efficient workforce, an expanded knowledge of our
customer preferences and further improvements in service
levels, while more efforts will need to be invested in driving
revenue growth in the coming year. To this end, and on
behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our Management
team and our 11,800 plus colleagues for their hard work and
commitment in driving the business forward and for their
passion to provide our customers with better products and
service.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHBEE

In terms of network expansion, the Group opened seven new
hypermarket stores in 2017, of which four were located in
the third and fourth tier cities of Guangdong Province, two in
Hunan Province and one in Shaanxi Province. The Group also
opened a neighbourhood store in Beijing. The eight new stores
brought to us an additional total sales floor of approximately
43,250 square meters. In addition to another new hypermarket
opened in Xian in January 2018, the Group currently has a
network of 70 stores and two shopping centres.

Governance

We have continued to comply without exception with all
relevant rules and regulations. We continued to work on
the corporate responsibility and sustainable development
initiatives and have complied with the obligations set out in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Guidelines.

Prospect

Building on the solid foundations we created in 2017, we are
looking to the future with confidence and strength and are
excited about the challenges and opportunities that lie ahead.
We are actively looking into the development of different
business formats to cater for customers’ different needs and
to diversify income streams, and we will also be upgrading our
ERP systems to provide omni-channel functionalities, making
our business more flexible, capable of catering to customer
requests, and better connected across the enterprise. We have
detailed plans and initiatives to mitigate cost headwinds and
to further improve productivity and efficiency. We will also be
stepping up our network expansion in 2018.

The strategic turnaround plan is well underway and is
delivering significant momentum across the organisation.
Crucially, we have a talented group of engaged colleagues
who remain totally focused on implementing our strategy and
on meeting the evolving expectations of our customers and
providing them with the very best customer service; in doing
so we will drive sustainable long-term growth.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of the Board,
to extend our appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders,
banks and vendors for their continuing trust and support,
and again to every one of my colleagues across the business
for their hard work and contribution to what had been a very
encouraging year for the Group. Lastly, | would also like to
thank my fellow Board members for their continued guidance
and support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

23 February 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DM
I

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

KPIs of revenue, margin and expenses are detailed in the financial
review. Details of other key performance indicators used in the
management of the business are provided below:

RERRER(BERKRRERD

WA FEREBRACBRRBIEECHIINY
EERE  HtAREKEE > BRRBEEN
T

Retail selling space 2017 2016 Change
TEHEEH —E—+tF —E-REF BE
Store numbers JEHEA 69 61 13.1%
Sq. meters (’000) FHKF) 788.4* 751.7* 4.9%

We measure our growth not only by how much sales we do, we also
look at the amount of retail selling space which in part is determined
by how fast we expand our network.

Selling space is defined as the sales floor area and area sub-leased to others,
excludes shopping mall

* excludes the two stores currently closed for renovation

BT ERRIEZEREEH  FZRETEH
EZHHE  ERIVAREMEBERABNI K
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Like-for-like sales growth 2017 2016 Change
& Lt JE g R —E—iF —E-XRE 25
Sales growth HEER -8.0% -8.2% 0.2%

Comparable store sales are a valuable measure not only of
individual store performance but of the overall financial health of the
Company.

Like-for-like sales growth is calculated by comparing the sales derived in the

THBEREEHEEREENTEES  TF
SFEEREHNKRE WU EQAEENT
HEMRR o

I JE#98R M BB R G F /B - BB EEE

stores, which were opened over 12 full months as two consecutive years 12 A Z/EH i ETE

Average customer count per day 2017 2016 Change
BHEHEEAR —E—+tF —E—-REF LX)
Customer visit FIEREH 4,241 4,688 -9.5%

By looking at the customer count change and in particular the
change in different demographic groups helps the Company to
design more focused marketing strategies.

Average customer count is calculated as total customer count divided by 365
days of Like-for-like store only

EBIEMEARNBL  BHULTAESR
thAOFH B BHRARTRIEMS
1B 0 S 0

FHIBEE ARG L JE 38 2 A KB 365K 71 &
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

C. P. Lotus Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) recorded a net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “Reporting Period”) of RMB179.0 million (2016: loss of
RMB537.6 million).

Bt %5 0 8

NgBERAERAR (ALXT]) REWEQ R
(B AEF ) BE=—S—+tE+=-RA=1+—
HIEFE (TFREHB ) B8R QT RREMS
FEEEA ARB179,000,0007T (ZFE—REF :
A R¥537,600,0007T 2 EE) °

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mER#ER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—ZF—tF+-HA=+—HILFE

2017 2016 Change Change
“E-tF ZE-RE 2E 25

RMB million  RMB million RMB million
ARBEERL ARWEER ARWHER %
Revenue KA 9,655.2 10,085.7 (430.5) (4.3)
Gross profit EF 1,736.5 1,738.5 (2.0) (0.1)
Other revenue and other net loss HitWMEREtEEFE 563.8 124.1 439.7 354.3
Distribution and store operating costs BEREAREERA (1,707.1) (1,892.0) 184.9 (9.8)
Administrative expenses THER (266.4) (402.5) 136.1 (33.8)
Finance costs MERA (101.6) (82.8) (18.8) 22.7
Income tax P& % (46.2) (22.9) (23.3) 101.7
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREN/(ER) 179.0 (537.6) 716.6 (133.3)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: ST A L EEEERR/ (FE):

Equity shareholders of the Company ARARE 179.0 (537.6) 716.6 (133.3)

Revenue fell by RMB430.5 million or 4.3% to RMB9,655.2 million.
The reduction was due to revenue contributed by seven new
hypermarkets and one neighbourhood store opened in 2017 being
insufficient to offset the 8.0% reduction in same store sales,
which was a result of the continued easing of the economy and
the intensified competition from online retailers. In addition, the
business integration of online and offline accelerated in 2017 and
several new forms of retail stores were have emerged in the market,
giving customers more choices and increasing competition. All
merchandise categories, except fresh food, recorded a reduction
in sales as compared to last year with apparel and electronic
appliances being the most affected categories, recording a 17.7%
and 18.0% reduction respectively.

Gross profit margin was 18.0% of sales (2016: 17.2%), although
gross profit reduced by RMB2.0 million or 0.1%. Gross profit margin
consists of front and back margin: front margin is sales minus direct
cost of sales, while back margin represents income from suppliers
such as discounts and allowances. Front margin improved by 0.5
percentage point to 9.0% and back margin up 0.3 percentage point
from 8.7% to 9.0%. The improvement in gross profit margin was
mainly the result of reduction of low margin sales. The front margin
amount, despite the 4.3% drop in sales, was up RMB5.2 million
as compared to last year. The drop in sales led to lower volume
rebates received from suppliers:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
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Other revenue and other net loss was RMB563.8 million or 5.8%
of sales (2016: RMB124.1 million or 1.2% of sales), comprised
mainly lease income, being income received from the leasing of
store space. An impairment loss of goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment in the amount of RMB351.2 million
was recorded in 2016. Lease income increased by RMB41.7 million
to RMB522.8 million as a result of contribution from the seven new
hypermarkets and one neighbourhood store which were opened
during the Reporting Period and higher rental charged upon lease
renewal. An exchange gain of RMB73.0 million as a result of
appreciation in RMB/US dollars exchange rate of over 5.8% during
the year was recorded against our US dollars (“USD”) borrowing;
however, such gain was offset by the loss from the USD forward
foreign exchange contract of approximately RMB103.7 million. The
USD forward foreign exchange contract matures on 23 July 2018.

Distribution and store operating costs was RMB1,707.1 million
or 17.7% of sales (2016: RMB1,892.0 million or 18.8% of sales).
It comprised mainly personnel expenses, rental, utilities and
depreciation and amortization for a total of RMB1,520.9 million,
representing 15.8% of sales. Personnel expenses reduced by
approximately RMB67.6 million despite the opening of seven
new hypermarkets and one neighbourhood store and an annual
increase in statutory minimum wages. Rental expenses and tax
paid reduced by RMB44.2 million due to the VAT tax reform in May
2016. Overall, the significant reduction in total distribution and store
operating costs amounting to RMB184.9 million was a result of a
continued refining of the Group’s cost structure and improvement
in productivity and work efficiency, leading to a reduction in
controllable expenses such as cleaning, security, sales promotion
and transportation expenses.

Front Margin
Al & R E

M Back Margin
E3=FIp: |
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563,800,000 C K $EEFH 25.8% (ZFE—<F :
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Administrative expenses was RMB266.4 million or 2.8% of sales
as compared to RMB402.5 million or 4.0% of sales in 2016. It
mainly consisted of personnel expenses of RMB213.0 million,
depreciation and amortization charge of RMB13.0 million, rental
of RMB17.3 million and professional fee of RMB8.5 million. The
reduction was mainly from the RMB91.0 million reduction in
personnel expenses, largely the result of the continued refinement
of organisation structure and improvement in productivity and work
efficiency in our administrative functions. A compensation payment
of RMB6.4 million was made during the Reporting Period relating to
the organisation restructuring, as compared to RMB40.1 million in
2016.

Financial costs was RMB101.6 million, or 1.1% of sales,
representing an increase of RMB18.8 million from last year.

Income tax was RMB46.2 million (2016: RMB22.9 million).

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB179.0 million (2016: loss of RMB537.6 million including an
impairment loss of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment in the amount of RMB351.2 million). The significant
turnaround was largely due to the reduction in distribution and store
operating costs of RMB184.9 million and administrative expenses of
RMB136.1 million.

Capital expenditure was RMB330.5 million for the year under
review, mainly for the opening of new stores, renovation of existing
stores and replacement of equipment. The Group financed its
capital expenditure through a combination of cash generated from
its operations activities and loans from the controlling shareholder
banking facilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R BB R B R

As at 31 December 2017
R-—F—tFE+=-HA=+—H

2017 2016 Change Change
“E-tF ZE-RE BE g
RMB million  RMB million ~ RMB million
AREBEERT AR¥AER ARKEER %
Property, plant and equipment and ME- BERZER
interests in leasehold land held for 2EHEZEALH
own use under operating leases HE#ER 1,813.2 1,689.7 123.5 7.3
Goodwill [k 2,654.3 2,654.3 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHe%E 166.1 204.9 (38.8) (18.9)
Pledged bank deposits BEMFRTER 59.9 59.5 0.4 0.7
Inventories RE 1,144.7 1,240.5 (95.8) (7.7)
Trade and other receivables EERHMEKE 849.1 830.3 18.8 2.3
Other assets HihEE 186.8 207.0 (20.2) (9.8)
Total Assets BEE 6,874.1 6,886.2 (12.1) (0.2)
Loans from controlling shareholder, ERRRER RTER
bank loans, overdrafts and other loans BIXRAMER 1,186.3 1,241.2 (54.9) (4.4)
Trade payables and other liabilities EERAREREMER 3,998.2 4,122.1 (123.9) (3.0)
Total liabilities BEE 5,184.5 5,363.3 (178.8) (3.3)
Net Assets HERHE 1,689.6 1,522.9 166.7 10.9
Share capital iy 405.7 405.7 - -
Reserves fiE 1,283.9 1,117.2 166.7 14.9
Total Equity BRAE 1,689.6 1,522.9 166.7 10.9

Property, plant and equipment & interests in leasehold land held Y% - EERRERLERNE AT HES
for own use under operating lease increased, mainly because of  #Ez51%iN 3+ = X B0 97 /5 B H i JE S B M0O%
additions in property, plant and equipment of RMB330.5 million for EB¥¥% - EENFZE ARE330,500,0007T ; B
the opening of new stores and other store renovation; depreciation FERZIFEREHHS L A RE®193,900,000
and amortization for the year of RMB193.9 million, and because ' RERBEHEANHENE EERHZH
certain property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of BRE{E A A K #13,000,0007T °

RMB13.0 million was disposed of during the Reporting Period.
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Goodwill of RMB2,654.3 million of which RMB2,526.8 million,
RMB124.0 million and RMB3.4 million are allocated to the East
China Region, the South China Region and North China Region
respectively. Impairment test on the goodwill value is carried out
annually based on a number of assumptions including discount
rates, forecast growth rates and expected changes to direct prices
and selling costs. No goodwill impairment provision was made in
2017 (2016: goodwill impairment loss of RMB257.5 million was
recognised).

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB166.1 million as of
31 December 2017 (2016: RMB204.9 million).

Pledged bank deposits amounted to RMB59.9 million as at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB59.5million), mainly represents deposits
pledged for the issuance of bank accepted bills for payments to
suppliers.

Inventories balance was RMB1,144.7 million as at 31 December
2017, a decrease of RMB95.8 million with an average inventory
turnover days of 53 days (2016: 54 days).

Trade and other receivables increased by RMB18.8 million to
RMB849.1 million (2016: RMB830.3 million). Included in the balance
was RMB383.3 million (2016: RMB401.9 million) of trade receivables
and other receivables. All the trade and other receivables, apart
from rental deposits of RMB125.5 million (2016: RMB117.6 million),
are expected to be recovered within one year and thus no provision
was made. Also included in the balance was RMB465.8 million
(2016: RMB387.2 million) of receivables from related companies.
Credit terms of 30 days to 90 days was offered to related
companies and corporate customers with ongoing relationship,
over 66.7% of the trade receivable outstanding had an ageing of
less than 90 days. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
RMB146.5 million or 33.0% of total trade receivables due from
related companies had been received, which was all included in the
over 90 days category in the ageing analysis.

Other assets of RMB186.8 million comprised of intangible assets
of RMB137.4 million, deferred tax assets of RMB35.0 million, and
prepaid lease payments for premises of RMB14.4 million. Intangible
assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired in the
acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and in 2012. Intangible assets are
amortised using the straight-line method over the remaining lease
terms which vary from 10 to 30 years.

Loan from controlling shareholder, bank loans, overdrafts and
other loans amounted to RMB1,186.3 million as at 31 December
2017, a reduction of RMB54.9 million, due to the appreciation in
RMB/US dollars exchange rate against our USD borrowing. Of
the RMB1,186.3 million outstanding, RMB913.0 million relates
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to loan extended by C.P. Holdings (BVI) Investment Company
Limited (“CPH”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
is repayable on 26 December 2018. The Company has received
a letter of support from CPH, which confirmed it will continue
to provide adequate support to the Group so as to enable it to
continue its operation for the foreseeable future.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
ERAS

As at 31 December 2017
R-ZFE—tF+=-HA=+—H

EEENWR D

L —w

A R %913,000,0007T % 4 A 7 KR IR ERC.P.
Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited
(TCPHNREzERK IR=—ZF—-—NF+=A
Z+ARBEHEE - KARERCPHIKE — 14
XERUEAGEENAEERM TR XSS
LUEHENAI ARG REEHEN -

Loans from
Bank loans controlling Loans from
and overdrafts shareholder third parties Total
ROTERREX ERBRREN ZE=-AR#ZEXR EEE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEETR ARBEER ARBEER ARBEET
Within one year —FR 229.9 913.0 43.4 1,186.3

Trade payables and other liabilities as at 31 December 2017
was RMBS3,998.2 million (2016: RMB4,122.1 million) of which
RMB171.9 million (2016: RMB140.4 million) was due to related
parties. The forward foreign exchange contracts with a net fair value
RMB40.1 million (2016: RMB41.2 million included in trade and other
receivables) has been recognized as derivative financial instruments
and included in the trade and other payables during the Reporting
Period.

Reserves balance was RMB1,283.9 million as at 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB1,117.2 million). It comprises share premium
of RMB1,933.2 million, other reserves of RMB231.4 million and
accumulated losses of RMB880.8 million.

Capital structure

The Group finances its own working capital requirement through
a combination of funds generated from operations, loans from
controlling shareholder and bank and other borrowings.

Liquidity and finance resources

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s sources of fund were
primarily from operating activities and loans from the controlling
shareholder and banking facilities. The reduction in net cash and
cash equivalents was mainly due to the cash generated from
operation and additional bank borrowing being less than the capital
expenditure payments and repayment of bank loans and interest.
However, we expect that we will continue to have sufficient cash to
meet our business needs.

EERNREREMEBR-ZE—t&+=
B=1+—H A AK%3,998,200,000T (=&
—RE: AR®4,122,100,0007T) ' E R A
R #171,900,000t (ZZE—RFE: AR¥
140,400,0007t) BENEBA LT 2RE - B

NREE ARY40,100,000T (ZFE—RF :
FAEERHMERFENAABAARYE
41,200,0007t) » YRR EHBEFTALEERE
o FEAS FRIE o

HER-ZE—tF+ZA=+—Bz&&%
A AR %1,283,900,0007T (ZF — K< F
AR #1,117,200,0007T) - Lk BER D 5 E
AR #1,933,200,0007t * HhfFE AR
231,400,000t & 2518 A R #880,800,000
J'E o

BEAXRRERB

AEEUEE ERRRERERTREAME
FHARELCESFRHEEEER -

BN B &R

RBEHBR - AEBECESREETRREE
BEW ERRRERRBRITHRE - BERHB
CTERFRALIERREBEBELECRER
BMER - PREAFEZHBEERTERKF
B -EBXREEENSEEELERTERSE  UE
NEBHRE -
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For the year
ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—FE—+tF —E-RF
Cash and cash equivalents (RMB million) RekReEH(ARBEET) 166.1 204.9
Loans from controlling shareholder, ERBRRER RITER
bank loans, overdrafts and other loans EXREMER
(RMB million) (ANREBER) 1,186.3 1,241.2
Net cash (outflow)/inflow after BE&(RE), RN FE
effect of foreign exchange (REBHIBEREE 2 EE)
rate changes (RMB million) (AR®BER) (20.8) 21.1
Current ratio (x) TENEE = (£3) 0.44 0.56
Quick ratio (x) BB R (1F) 0.21 0.26
Gearing ratio (x) EREEELE (1F)
(defined as loans from controlling shareholder,  (IZBRBRRER  RITER
bank loans, overdrafts and other loans EYRHEMERR
divided by total equity) FRUAAARERETE) 0.70 0.82

During the Reporting Period, bank loans bore interest at six-month
PBOC Rate multiplied by 1.20, being 5.22% per annum, or bear
fixed interest ranging from 4.70% to 5.22% per annum. The loan
from controlling shareholder bore interest at three-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin, which during the
Reporting Period varied between 4.50% per annum to 5.15% per
annum.

Foreign currency exposure

The Directors consider that as all of the Group’s retail operations
are based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to significant
currency risks in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from shareholder
and other loans which are denominated in USD. The Company
entered into USD forward foreign exchange contracts. As at 31
December 2017, one contract with a notional amount of USD139.8
million which will expire on 23 July 2018 was outstanding. A loss
of RMB103.7 million was recorded as of 31 December 2017 from
these USD forward foreign exchange contracts as a result of
the appreciation in RMB against USD. The Group did not enter
into derivative transactions for speculative purposes during the
Reporting Period.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had issued one guarantee to
an independent third party which expires in 2025 and one guarantee
to a bank which expires in April 2018 in respect of finance lease
arrangements entered into by a subsidiary. The Directors do not
consider it probable that claims will be made against the Group
under either of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group
as at 31 December 2017 under the guarantees issued was 100% of
the future minimum lease payments under the lease arrangements
entered into by the subsidiary of RMB60.0 million.

Annual Report 2017 &£ #&

RREHER > RITERRPEARBITAE
B 2R ERE FLL1.20  BIEFER522%T
BEFEFRLITONES.22% o A ATZERKE
EFRBREHEAZ=ZEARARBBITEEIR
B (BB TREIFE] MEMEBLI50%E
5.15%5%T & o

S BE L B
EERRAEEZEZTERBIGURFE

FEBRETEXEBREERZNERR -

AEEEHIERRBUEREAECIRRE
MREMER - RDAFFT L EHETRIPINE
HEEH R-E—+FE+=-A=+—H  —
1 Z E R4 5 A139,800,000EE T A A BER
—E-NFtBA=t+Z=ZRHEHP -HE=Z—t
F+-A=+—HLEFE FAREHETE
ZHEFEREPIEHRESCNEEARE
103,700,000t 2 E518 - RIREHB R » K&
EREETEAREENZITERS -

RREE

RZZB—+tF+ZA=+—RB FAKERBY
BZABRE-ER-_Z-AFIHPZER
TEBH-—BR-Z-N\FHAZHZRT
BR SEMNBLAT LR ERSE R HFIE
ReBEAFABULEMBERATEEAE
BRE AEERBHZERTR-2—tF
TZA=T-—BZBRAEBENHWBRAAT LA
EMBBZARARBRDEENTRZ100%0 R/ ARE
60,000,0007T °



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Employees, training and remuneration policy

The Group employed approximately 11,870 employees as at 31
December 2017, of which approximately 1,185 were head office
staff and approximately 10,685 were store employees. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance and
experience at the prevailing market remuneration levels. Other
employee benefits include insurance and medical cover, and
subsidised training programs.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Store network

During the Reporting Period, the Group opened seven new
hypermarkets, of which four were located in the third and fourth
tier cities of Guangdong Province, two in Hunan Province and one
in Shaanxi Province. The Group also opened a neighbourhood
store in Beijing. The eight new stores brought to us an additional
total sales floor of approximately 43,250 square meters. Including
a new store which was opened in Xian in January 2018, the Group
currently has a network of 70 stores with a total sales floor of
approximately 525,000 square meters. The Group also operates two
shopping centres, one in Shantou and one in Xian. Of the 70 stores,
approximately 56% are located in southern China, 29% in eastern
China and the remaining in cities, for example Beijing, Xian and
Zhengzhou.

Optimisation of merchandise, sales space and enhanced
relationship with suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to review and
enhance its merchandise mix and offerings. We continued to expand
our direct sourcing capabilities and identify more product supply
origins. More direct purchases for fresh food from overseas such as
lobsters from Boston and cherries from Chile were made, providing
our customers with better product range and at lower prices by
eliminating middlemen and agents. In addition, the Group continued
to invest in quality control to ensure freshness and food safety and
strictly adhere to the laws and regulations of food and production
safety.

The Group continued to regularly review its inventory level,
in particular of slow-moving items, and strengthen inventory
management, such as forecast and stock clearance after a tab
promotion ends. In addition, our house brand team continued to
work closely with the merchandise and marketing team to develop
competitively priced house brand products to enhance the Group’s
differentiation and competitiveness. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had 42 housebrand SKUs and plan to increase the SKUs
to 200 in the year 2018.
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As the disposable income continued to rise and customers look
for more premium products, we have expanded our import team
capability to bring in a wider range of imports products directly
from overseas vendors. The Group continued its review of the
allocation of sales space among different categories in response to
the relaxation of China’s one-child policy and the impact of online
retail to the demand of particular categories of merchandise. More
space is now allocated to fresh products and mother and baby care
sections as a wider range of higher quality products were brought
in to satisfy the growing demand while sales space for electronic
appliances and apparel has been reduced. Furthermore, to optimise
the operation structure and increase income, the self-operated
space of some stores had been reduced to make room for larger
lease areas. A bigger lease area allowed us to create a community
shopping environment by bringing in large-scale tenants such as
cinema and gym, and community supporting service merchants.
We completed the reallocation of space and upgrades in 17 stores
during the Reporting Period.

The Group continued to adopt the data-based approach for supplier
selection and procurement. The Group selected suppliers in an
open, fair and transparent manner and formed strategic alliance
with the suppliers to carry out monitoring and assessment, so as
to keep abreast with market trends and improve sales by bringing
in new products. Meanwhile, the Group strictly performed its
obligations under contracts and offered promotional display of
products, gaining wide recognition among the suppliers. In a survey
“Advantage Report Mirror” carried out by the Advantage Group
International Inc., which interviewed over 130 major suppliers in
China on their perceptions of 12 major nationwide and 32 regional
retail operators in areas such as category/business development,
logistics and retail execution, Lotus ranked 6th among the
nationwide category and moved one place up from 2016. The Group
continued to work closely with our suppliers. A vendor conference
was held in May 2017 to celebrate the Group’s 20" anniversary, to
show our appreciation to all the suppliers who had supported us
over the years and to discuss products and industry trends going
forward. Our vendor service team continued to provide high quality
service to our vendors through designated office and meeting space
to receive and address any enquiry from the vendors. To further
enhance our service level, another invoice processing centre was
set up in Shanghai with the objective to expedite invoice processing
time and improve response time to handle suppliers’ enquiry.

Improvement of operation and system efficiency

The Group continued to optimize the use of systems and tools
to improve operating efficiency. We carried out a comprehensive
review of the working conditions of our equipment in stores,
focusing on the replacement of high energy consumption, high
maintenance aging equipment and facilities to save energy and
improve operating efficiency. We also installed time- or voice-
controlled lights to reduce energy consumption.
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We continued to enhance our LOTUS-GO shopping app to integrate
the online and offline business. LOTUS-GO app was a self-
developed application, allowing customers to scan the barcode of
the products in store which they want to buy and make payment
at designated LOTUS-GO paying machine instead of using the
traditional cashier counters. In addition, the application provides
the latest information on products and promotion activities. The
membership card is also linked to the application, saving app user
the needs to carry a membership card with them during store visits.
Customers can also place the order on the app and they can choose
self-pick up or home delivery. Currently, this application is available
to both of our customers in southern and western China.

The Group continued to develop integrated data analysis to
understand business trends, performance of a particular promotion
activity, customer preferences and buying behaviours, in order
to help develop further tailor-made marketing activities, optimise
merchandise assortment and improve overall efficiency.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the upgrade of
the E-contract system, enabling the data on the e-contract to be
shared with the vendor management system. This helped remove
the redundancy for duplicate entry and eliminate human error in
data-input and improve efficiency.

The Group continued to review work process and procedures both
at store and head office level in order to minimize redundancy and
eliminate unproductive practices.

Optimisation of supply chain management

The distribution centre is an integral part of our retail business
and the Group had continued to strengthen its network and
improved functionality and efficiency. During the Reporting Period,
the Group continued to strengthen its supply chain process and
procedures and implemented upgraded tools and equipment to
improve efficiency and lower human errors. The Group was also
recognised by the China Food Cold Chain Association for having
a comprehensive supply chain network, top of class and efficient
service system and an outstanding workforce.

During the Reporting Period, as the Group stepped up its store
expansion in western China, to further strengthen its nationwide
logistic network by opening two new distribution centres in Hunan
and Xian and relocating the distribution centre in Guangzhou to a
bigger site to cater for the increasing volume of goods handled.
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Strengthening of customer satisfaction and enhancement of
brand awareness

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to focus on
traditional poster marketing and differentiated marketing, carefully
planned and organized festival marketing, themed marketing,
and other large-scale marketing and promoting activities. We
continued to raise awareness of women'’s welfare through our widely
recognized “Spring Pink” theme and the Group continued our very
successful “560% off thanks-giving activity” throughout the year, The
Group also held a couple of “midnight bonanza” in the Shanghai
region to further boost sales.

We also applied new media technology such as “wechat public
number” and “wechat moments” to create neighbourhood
communication groups for customers located within 5km radius
of a store. Promotion news and coupons are sent to these groups
periodically to raise brand awareness and increase sales.

Our performance depends on our ability to attract and retain
customers and to serve their demand. We continued to make
sure our customer service centre in each store and also our call
centres operate effectively and that there is sufficient capacity to
handle volumes. In addition, we also conducted periodic focus
group surveys to assess customer opinions and satisfaction levels
to ensure that our staff remained focused on delivering excellent
customer service. The Group’s customer base is diversified and,
excluding the wholesale sales to the subsidiaries of Whole Sino
Limited (“WSL”), a related party, there is no customer with whom
transactions have exceeded 1% of the Group’s revenue. In 2017,
merchandise sold to the retail stores owned and operated by WSL
subsidiaries amounted to approximately RMB653.6 million or 6.8%
of Group sales (2016: RMB749.1 million or 7.4%). Prices offered
to WSL were determined based on prevailing market prices and
were no less favourable than those available to the Group from
independent third parties.

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group strives to comply in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations which are regarded as having a significant
impact on the Group, and has not come across incidence of
material breach or non-compliance during the Reporting Period.

People Development

Training and development is one of the strategic priorities in
attracting, developing and retaining knowledgeable and skilled
workforce. During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
the evaluation of the organization structure in order to improve
overall productivity and lower the operating cost including giving
employees multi-posts with multiple skills and simplifying process
and procedures. By simplifying the reporting hierarchy and
optimisation of roles and functions, we were able to reduce the
total head count by approximately 3.0% compared to the same
period last year despite having opened eight more stores during the
Reporting Period.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

We continued to organize training seminars to our employees
including orientation trainings for new employees, training on our
code of ethics, training for job planning, job skills and case studies
of previous non-compliances and training specifically designed for
the merchandise team to improve their negotiation skills.

The Group continued work closely with the Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited (“CP Group”) to develop talents. Talented
young recruits were sent to C.P. Leadership Institute to participate
in the Future Leader Program organized by the CP Group.

In order to better motivate employees to achieve our sales and
profitability targets in 2017, corresponding incentive mechanisms
were developed for the stores, procurement and head office support
departments. The Group continued to implement the reform of our
store incentive mechanism, we continued to conduct store partner
system to promote the stores to carry out their business activities
with sales and profit as the core targets. Overall profit target were
also set for each operation department.

Our Safety, Occupational Health and Environmental (“SHE”) Policy

As a responsible employer and store operator, the Group pays great
attention to the health and safety of our employees, our customers
and our business partners. In addition, we also recognise we have
a responsibility and an obligation to work to reduce the direct
impact of our business operations on the natural environment. Our
performance in SHE is an integral part of our business activities and
a foundation for sustainable development. Our SHE commitment
includes:

° Promote SHE culture in the organisation and implement SHE
policy and procedures to create a sustainable future;

° Improve the environmental quality and ensure that the safety
and health of our employees is the top priority;

o Comply with all rules and regulations relating to our business
operation;

o Prevention of pollution, disease, injury and accidents;

° Continuous training to employees to increase awareness and

knowledge and encourage participation in SHE activities;

o Explore opportunities through research and new technology
to promote energy saving, resource recovery, recycling and
re-use of resources; and

° Establish effective communication channel to convey the SHE
policy to employees, customers, business partners and the
public.

For details of the environmental related activities performed in
2017, please refer Company’s 2017 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report published on the.-Company’s website and(on the
website of the'Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Group

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations
or growth prospects maybe affected by risks and uncertainties
pertaining to the Group’s businesses, the factors set out below are
considered to be the principal risks faced by the Group. They do
not comprise all of the risks associated with our business and are
not set out in priority order. Additional risks not presently known
to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also
have an adverse effect on the business.

Business Risks

Unclear strategy or strategy not being implemented - Our
business may suffer if we do not have a clear defined strategy
or if our strategy follows the wrong direction or is not effectively
communicated or implemented. The Group is operating in a highly
competitive industry and the retail industry itself is undergoing
a transformational change in this digital age. An unclear or
unsuccessful strategy against the growth of e-commerce as well
as against other competitors and failure to compete on areas
including price, product range, quality and multichannel service may
adversely affect our market share and profitability.

Mitigating measures:

Business strategy is reviewed regularly to determine how sales and
profit budgets can be achieved or bettered, and business operations
made more efficient. This process includes setting of seasonal and
annual budgets and longer term financial objectives to identify ways
to improve/increase shareholders value. Critical to these processes
are the consideration of wider economic and industry specific
trends that affect the Group’s businesses, the competitiveness
position of its product offer and the financial structure of the Group.
In addition, the Audit Committee monitors strategic and operational
risk regularly and any significant matters are reported to the Board.

Product safety — Concerns regarding the safety of products offered
at our stores or the safety and quality of our supply chain could
cause customers to avoid purchasing certain products from us even
if the basis for the concern is beyond our control or whether or not
based on fact. These concerns could discourage consumers from
buying from us and may have an adverse effect on our turnover and
our reputation. Our business may also suffer if we fail to work with
our suppliers to ensure our products are designed and delivered to
meet a high standard and to ensure we can trace provenance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Mitigating measures:

Product quality and safety are core requirements at all stages of the
product’s life cycle. The Group reference and assist suppliers based
on strict requirement specifications for hygiene and conformity,
among other things. Throughout the supply chain, inspections are
increased and particular attention is paid to fresh produce. Stores
perform daily checks on the quality of other merchandise and are
subject to rigorous analysis and auditing procedures.

Distribution centre and logistics:

The Group regularly reviews the warehousing and distribution
operations that support the business. Risks include business
interruptions due to physical damage, access restrictions,
breakdowns, capacity storages, IT systems failure, inefficient
processes and third party failures.

Mitigating measures:

Planning processes are in place to ensure there is sufficient
warehouse handling capacity for expected future volumes over
the short and longer terms. In addition, service levels, warehouse
handling, inbound logistics and delivery costs are monitored
continuously to ensure goods are delivered to our warehouses and
our retail stores in a timely and cost-efficient manner.

Retail store network — The Group is primarily engaged in the
operation of hypermarkets, and our performance depends on
profitably developing the trading space of the store network.
Prime retail sites will generally remain in demand, and increased
competition for these can result in higher future rents.

Mitigating measures:

The predominately leased portfolio is actively monitored by senior
management, with openings, refits and closures based on store
profitability and cash payback. The Group will continue to invest in
new space where its financial criteria are met, and will renew and
refurbish its existing portfolio where appropriate.

Reliance on key systems — The Group rely heavily on the continued
availability and integrity of its IT systems, which must record
and process substantial volume of data and conduct inventory
management accurately and quickly. Any significant failure in the IT
processes of our retail operations in stores or in our supply chain
could impact our ability to trade. The damage or interruption of any
of the systems can be due to events that are beyond the control of
the Group.
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CEENERE SR

Mitigating measures:

System’s vulnerability and penetration testing, business continuity
plans and back up facilities are in place and are tested regularly
to ensure that business interruptions are minimized and data is
protected from corruption or unauthorized use. IT risks are also
managed through the application of internal policies and change
management procedures. Despite having proper procedures in
place, the Group cannot fully guarantee our systems are foolproof.

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks

The Group’s retail operations are all based in the PRC and all of our
turnover and substantial portion of our expenditure are denominated
in Renminbi, the Group is therefore not exposed to significant
currency risk in its operations. However, as RMB is not a freely
convertible currency, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
from bank loans and other loans which are denominated in USD.
The risk that exchange rate volatility may have an adverse effect on
our balance sheet or profit and loss account.

The interest rate for the shareholder loan and other loan is based
on LIBOR, our profit and loss account maybe adversely affected by
rising interest rates.

Mitigating measures:

CP Lotus operates a centralised treasury function which is
responsible for managing its liquidity, interest and foreign currency
risks. The Group’s treasury function operates under a Board-
approved policy. This includes approved counter-party and other
limits which are designed to mitigate the Group’s exposure to
financial risk. However, there can be no guarantee that the Group
would be able to compensate or hedge against such adverse
effects.

Funding and Liquidity Risks

The Group finances its operations by a combination of funds
generated from operating activities, banking facilities and
commercial paper. Weak performance could put pressure on free
cash flow and credit metrics and affect our ability to borrow or
increase our cost of our borrowing. In addition, underperform
against plan may result in impairment of asset values.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Mitigating measures:

The Group has adequate medium and long term financing in place
to support its business operations, and the Group’s cash position
and forecasts are regularly monitored and reported.

People

The Group’s continued development relies on the continued service
of its senior management and technical personnel, and its ability to
attract, retain, develop and motivate the best people with the right
capabilities at all levels, failure to do so could limit our ability to
succeed.

Mitigating measures:

Group offers competitive compensation packages as well as
subsidised training program, professional courses and seminars,
and regular on the job training. Remuneration policies and
succession planning are subject to periodic benchmarking to ensure
they remain appropriate for the Group.

LOOKING FORWARD

China economy has entered into the “new normal” stage of
development marked by stable growth. The future focus would be
on expanding the total market on a moderate scale while reforming
the supply structure and improving the quality and efficiency of
the supply system. Domestic demand expansion and consumption
upgrade will act as strong support for the future growth of consumer
retail industry.

We expect 2018 to be another challenging year but we are looking
into the future with confidence. As the Group plans to step up its
network expansion, it is very important for us to continue to remain
very diligent in the selection of new store location to maintain
quality and profitability. The recent acceleration of the business
integration of online and offline demonstrates traditional brick and
mortar stores are as important as ever and shopping is for many
people a pleasurable experience that cannot be replicated online.
We will therefore continue to improve our service level. At the same
time, it is also important for us to develop different forms to cater
for the customers’ different and evolving needs. As a results, we are
actively looking into the development of smaller sized retail formats.
We will continue head office restructuring including streamlining the
administrative process to reduce office overheads and headcounts.
We are also continuing negotiations with a number of landlords
to restructure the rental payment structure. We are optimistic that
in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, we can build on the
solid foundation created in 2017 and deliver another satisfactory
performance in 2018.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEREBRES

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practice is the cornerstone for a
successful business, not only an exercise in compliance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all of the relevant code provisions
prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and supervises the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The non-executive directors (including the independent non-
executive directors) provide advisory, check and balances for
effective and constructive contribution to the Board to safeguard
interest of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to certain executive directors and senior
management and certain specific responsibilities to the Board
committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of the annual report, the Board comprises thirteen
members, eight are executive directors (including a Chairman,
an Executive Chairman and three Vice Chairmen) and five are
independent non-executive directors. Detailed biographies of the
directors can be found on pages 32 to 36 of this annual report.

On 28 February 2018, Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed has resigned as
executive director and Vice Chairman.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company are separated
and the positions are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain an effective segregation of duties between management
of the Board and day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and CEO.
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Corporate Governance Report

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company. He is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company and providing
leadership to the Board so that the Board works efficiently and
discharges its responsibilities such that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed and addressed in a timely manner.

Mr. Weng Hai Xin is the CEO of the Company. He is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the C.P. Lotus Group’s business
within the strategic development plans of the Company overseen by
Mr. Li Wen Hai, Executive Chairman of the Company.

Board and Committee Attendance
The Board held seven meetings in 2017. Details of the attendance of

each individual director at Board meetings, committee meetings and
general meeting during 2017 are set out below:

TREARES

e

HEALERRRAZER - HEEERES
SPEERBIFT AR AR REERR - HE
EEEEHAREMITFERBEITRE  BUEM
FEERRGE-SHRARESSERNRRE
e

PBBLERA DT CEEYTE AERF
BBLELE (MTESR) EEARQARKERE
SR MEEREEXFE 2AEER -

EZEgREEEZHER
ESER-E-LFETLRESEER
NESR-_Z-—LFAHFESEER R85
EERRRRASZFHFEINOT :

No. of meetings attended/held

8 Siv-£ VA I
Corporate
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit  Governance
Directors Bz Shareholder Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
REAS Eze REZEE  FMZEE  BHZEE L¥ERZES
Executive Directors YnES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont BEALE 15 4 11 17 - -
Mr. Li Wen Hai TEEEE 1 mn - - - -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont ABMEE 17 5/7 - - - -
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE %4 0/1 4n - - - -
Mr. Michael Ross EFREE 0/1 17 - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping B RE 0/1 07 - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont E B vt 1 4 - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont E Yk 0/1 17 - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4 11 7 - 1 44 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIHk#HTEZ
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnitst & I 1 il 1 4/4 2/2
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti JaggabataraZt & 11 7 - 11 4/4 -
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong % % 11 1 - - 114 -
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech’t & i 7/7 - - 114 2/2
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHRLE 1" mn 17 17 4/4 -
No. of meetings EELE 1 7 1 1 4 2
* attended on voluntary basis * HEZM
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TEREBRES

Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and
Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers. They are the cousins
of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-
law of Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont
and Suphachai Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont. Save as disclosed above, there are no family
relationships among members of the Board and between the
Chairman and the CEO.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training record of each director of the Company
was received for the year ended 31 December 2017. Messrs.
Soopakij Chearavanont, Li Wen Hai, Narong Chearavanont, Chan
Yiu-Cheong, Ed, Michael Ross, Meth Jiaravanont, Umroong
Sanphasitvong, Viroj Sangsnit, Songkitti Jaggabatara, Itthaporn
Subhawong, Prasobsook Boondech and Cheng Yuk Wo participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminar
relevant to business or directors’ duties and responsibilities.
Messrs. Yang Xiaoping and Suphachai Chearavanont participated in
continuous professional development by reading materials.

Securities Transactions by Directors/Officers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, they confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.
Officers/employees deemed to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive or confidential information in relation to the Company
or its shares are prohibited from dealing in securities of the
Company in accordance with written guidelines.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal
There was no appointment of directors during the year.

All newly appointed directors shall be briefed by the Company’s
lawyers about their duties and obligations as a director of a listed
company in Hong Kong.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
one year, which is renewable. All of the directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at general
meetings of the Company, in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointment, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles, at least one-third
of the directors who have served the longest on the Board from last
re-election are required to retire-by rotation at each annual general
meeting. The retiring directors ‘are eligible for re-election at the
same annual general meeting:
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BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),
Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara with the purpose of
monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and
providing assurance to the Board that the financial statements
comply with accounting standards, stock exchange and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting. The Audit Committee
met twice in 2017 to review work done by external auditors, review
financial position, oversees financial reporting system, review the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and procedures. The Audit Committee receives updates from
Internal Audit and has dialogue with senior management on their
control responsibilities. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is posted on the Company’s website.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG is set out as follows:
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Audit Services
Other Services

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk
Wo (Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara and
two executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont and Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out by the
Board with clearly defined written terms of reference posted on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the formulation of the Group’s remuneration policies and for
the approval of remuneration packages for all directors except
that its members do not participate in the determination of his
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee determines
the remuneration of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses,
incentive payment, share option, pension right and compensation
payment (including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment etc). The determination
of the Remuneration Committee was made in consultation with and
taking recommendations from the Chairman of the Board and other
advisers as appropriate with reference to the performance of the
directors during the year and was submitted for endorsement by the
Board. The Remuneration Committee met. once in 2017 to discharge
its duties. Details of the directors’ emoluments are’set out,in Note 6
to the/financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive director
of the Company, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive directors of the Company,
Messrs. Viroj Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include determining
and reviewing the nomination policy and Board diversity policy,
making recommendations to the structure, size and composition of
the Board at least annually, the appointment and re-appointment
of the directors and identify their suitabilities and to access the
independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee met once in 2017 to discharge its duties,
including review the Board composition, assess the independency
of independent non-executive directors under the guidelines of the
Listing Rules and review of the Board diversity policy and terms
of reference. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is posted on the Company’s website.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of two independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Prasobsook
Boondech (Chairman) and Viroj Sangsnit and one executive
director of the Company, Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main
roles and responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
include reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines,
and the compliance with the Code Provisions. The Corporate
Governance Committee met twice in 2017 to discharge the
aforesaid duties. The written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is posted on the Company’s website.

SUMMARY OF BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company, selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in the Company etc. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. Steady progress was made on achieving those
objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational
risks and maintaining proper and effective systems of risk
management and internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets against unauthorized use or
disposition. The Board acknowledges it is responsible for the
risk management and internal control systems and review of the
effectiveness, and has through the Audit Committee conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group
has adopted comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels
of authority in areas of financial, operational controls, and risk
management to ensure that its assets and resources remain secure
at all times.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, through dialogue with
management and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions, reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems annually and reporting to the Board any
significant risks and issues.

The risk management function is responsible for analyzing possible
risks that may affect the Group’s business operations and finding
measures to eliminate, prevent and control risks. The Group has
invested in distribution centers and information technology systems
such as the store management system and the distribution center
system. Information technology has played a major role in assisting
the Group to achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis.
Any error or problem in the information technology systems may
affect the Group’s ability to manage store operation on a normal
basis and negatively affect the Group’s operation performance.

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Group’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review.
Deriving its authority from the Audit Committee, the internal audit
department reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to
the Audit Committee.

The Group developed the “Enterprise Risk Management System”
in 2016 as an on-going process for increasing the efficiency in
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks associated
with the business of the Group, which alerts any such risk to the
management team and prevent significant financial or operating
losses to the Group. The System has designated responsible
personnel of the relevant business unit to identify, assess, manage
relevant risks with respect to material control areas including
financial, operational and compliance and execute mitigation
measures accordingly. Results of risk evaluation are reported
to the Audit Committee semi-annually through risk management
function which continuously oversees the effectiveness of the
risk management system and ensures that the relevant control
measures are properly implemented within prescribed timeline. A
risk_management policy jwhich _sets out the framework, guideline,
procedures and action plans was adopted /by the Board as
recommended by the Audit Committee.
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During the year 2017, the Group engaged an external professional
firm which expertized in inventory physical count process to provide
an independent transparency, accuracy and time efficiency of store
inventory physical count management to the Group. The firm further
provided analysis and suggestion the effectiveness of inventory
management prevention risk in the stores to the Group.

The internal audit function of the Group carried out internal control
review on a regular basis on the internal control procedures to
ensure individual continuing connected transactions are conducted
in accordance with the pricing policies or applicable mechanism
under the relevant framework agreements. The internal audit
function is also responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of
procedures in relation to risk management and internal control
systems and submits the reports on its findings to the Audit
Committee annually. The Board regularly receives and reviews
monthly updates to undergo overall assessment of the Company’s
business performance.

The Audit Committee provides independent review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and makes appropriate recommendation to the Board.
The Board then reviews the internal audit report and approves
applicable policies and procedures designed by the management.
The Board believes that the existing risk management and internal
control systems are adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied
with the adequacy of the resources, qualification and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function and
their training schemes and budget upon its review.

The objective of operation audit is to provide an independent
and objective evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of store
operations including risk management and internal controls
established by the management. Each store goes through a
detailed monthly inspection of key operating activities such as cash
flow, received goods, claims and payments. Storewide physical
counts are carried out at least once each year. The operation audit
department reports to the Chief Financial Officer.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
Group’s state of affairs. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section on page 60 to 62 of the annual report.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
and has complied with its disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules and Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“Disclosure of Inside Information”) through establishing internal
procedures to ensure inside information is escalated to the senior
level and disseminated as )'soon as possible. Any information
required to-be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules and/
or the Disclosure of Inside.Information would be announced timely.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72 and 73 of the Articles, general meetings can
be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.

Any extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by notice in writing of not less
than a period which is the longer of twenty-one days and ten clear
business days, and any other extraordinary general meeting shall
be called by notice in writing of not less than a period which is the
longer of fourteen days and ten clear business days. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special
business (as defined in Article 75 of the Articles), particulars of
the resolutions to be considered at the meeting, and shall be
given in manner hereinafter mentioned or in such other manner, if
any, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting to
such persons as are, under these Articles, entitled to receive such
notices from the Company provided that a meeting of the Company
notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than that specified
in this Article be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
ninety-five per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board or any proposals
to be put forward at general meetings can be emailed to
contact@cplotuscorp.com or by mail to:

C.P. Lotus Corporation
21/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available to shareholders for the
performance of the Group including annual and interim report, press
release and announcements. Annual general meeting and other
general meetings provide a useful opportunity for the Board to
maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintain continuing open dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts as a mean of developing their
understanding of our strategy, operations, management and plans
and raising any issues they may have and provide the Group with
valuable feedbacks and insights.

The Company has its company website http://www.cplotuscorp.com

which provides additional channel for shareholders and interested
parties to access the Group’s information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 54, is Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company and has been an Executive Director since
2000. Mr. Chearavanont has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business and Public
Administration of New York University, USA and has extensive
multinational investment and management experience in various
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is an executive director and Vice
Chairman of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a non-executive director and
the Chairman of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited which
are companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He is also a non-executive director of Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Chearavanont is a director of True
Corporation Public Company Limited and CP ALL Public Company
Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
He is also the Chairman of True Visions Public Company Limited
and the Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.
Mr. Chearavanont was previously a director of Siam Makro Public
Company Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand).

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 60, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008 and re-
designated as Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 22 October 2013. He ceased to
be Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and was re-
designated as Executive Chairman of the Company with effect from
1 December 2015. Mr. Li obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration from Huazhong Normal University, PRC and is a
senior economist. He has extensive experience in retail business.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 53, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as
Vice Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from New
York University, USA, Certificate of Advance Management Program
in Transforming Proven Leaders into Global Executives from
Harvard Business School, Harvard University, USA and an Honorary
Doctorate degree of Business Administration from Ramkamhaeng
University, Thailand. Mr. Chearavanont has extensive experience in
the retail and trading industries. He is a director of True Corporation
Public Company Limited, CP ALL Public Company Limited and Siam
Makro Public Company Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Thailand.
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Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed, aged 55, was an Executive Director
and Vice Chairman of the Company from 1 April 2012 to 28
February 2018. He obtained a Bachelor degree from the University
of Chicago, USA and a Master degree from the Sloan School of
Management, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Mr.
Chan was a Regional Director North Asia of the Diary Farm Group
and a director of Dairy Farm Management Services Limited from
November 2001 to November 2006. He was the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Walmart China from November 2006 to October
2011. Mr. Chan has ceased to be a Vice Chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited. He is also a non-executive
director of Treasury Wine Estates Limited, a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange and independent non-executive
director of Link Real Estate Investment Trust, which is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Yum China
Holdings, Inc., which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Mr. Michael Ross, aged 53, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as
Executive Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 May
2008 and ceased to hold such position with effect from 1 September
2010. Mr. Ross has been re-designated as Vice Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He obtained a Master
degree in Science from University of Salford, United Kingdom and
a Bachelor degree in Hospitality Management from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Hong Kong. He completed an Executive
Program at the Kennedy School of Government of Harvard
University in USA in 2009. He has extensive experience in retail
business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter in 1999, he had served
in major key positions in Business Development, Operations and
Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross had also served as
Regional President in Southern Region & Eastern Region of Lotus.
Mr. Ross has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) Shanghai Pudong New Area
Committee since June 2013.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 54, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 14 May 2007 and ceased to hold
such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr. Yang was re-
designated as Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1
January 2012. He has more than 20 years’ of extensive experience
in the international trading and investment in the PRC and has good
contact with central, provincial and municipal governors. Mr. Yang
is a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Ltd. (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
CITIC Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), and Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics
(Group) Corporation Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 59, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
Mr. Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment, finance,
banking and strategic business development in Asia and USA. He
is currently a non-executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He is currently also the Senior Executive Assistant
to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 51, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Chearavanont has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. He is an executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co.
Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, a director, President and Chief Executive
Officer of True Corporation Public Company Limited which is listed
on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Chearavanont is also a
director and Chief Executive Officer of True Visions Public Company
Limited and True Move Company Limited. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.
Mr. Chearavanont was previously a director of Siam Makro Public
Company Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand).

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 65, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company in December 2006 and August 2016,
respectively. He obtained a Bachelor and a Master degree in
Accounting from Thammasat University, Thailand and has extensive
experience in financial management. Mr. Sanphasitvong is currently
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and of
CPPC Public Company Limited. He is also the Deputy Group Chief
Financial Officer of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESERHE

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 82, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit
Committee of the Company since 1999. He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was appointed as
a member of Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company with effect from 1 April 2012 and 20
August 2016 respectively. Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy Minister of
Transport from 1991 to 1992 and the Deputy of Minister of Defense
in 1996 in Thailand.

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the Chulachomklao
Royal Military Academy, Thailand and graduated from National
Defence College of Thailand. Mr. Jaggabatara served in the Royal
Thai Armed Forces for 39 years and was appointed as Chief of
Defence Forces of the Royal Thai Armed Forces in 2008. He retired
from the Royal Thai Armed Forces on 30 September 2011. Mr.
Jaggabatara is currently an Advisor to Kasetphand Industry Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong, aged 66, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He graduated from National Defence College of Thailand. Mr.
Subhawong served in the Royal Thai Air Force (“RTAF”) for 37 years
and was appointed as Air Chief Marshal of the RTAF in 2007. He
was appointed the 21st Commander-in-Chief of the RTAF on 1
October 2008. Mr. Subhawong retired as Commander-in-Chief of
the RTAF on 30 September 2012.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech, aged 72, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He was appointed as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee with effect from 20 August 2016. He has been an
independent director of CP ALL Public Company Limited (a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand). He obtained
a Bachelor of Laws degree from Thammasat University, Thailand.
Mr. Boondech was admitted as Barrister-at-Law, Institute of Legal
Education, Thai Bar Association, Thailand in 1967 and Barrister-at-
Law, Lincoln’s Inn, England in 1972. He has extensive experience
in the legal field and is a lecturer on Family Law, Faculty of Law,
Chulalongkorn University and Institute of Legal Education, Thai
Bar Association, Thailand. Mr. Boondech was the President of the
Senate of Thailand from 2008 to 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 2004. He was a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and became its
Chairman on 1 April 2012, when he also became a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a
Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and
Finance from London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of expertise
in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, Top Spring International
Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited and Kidsland
International Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of each of Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited and Somerley Capital Holdings Limited, companies
listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He was an independent non-executive director of Imagi
International Holdings Limited listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from July 2010 to January 2016.

ESERHE

v

BHMAL 575 B-ZEZENFHERE LD
BAZBYFHTESRAVNAZEREZEEE
FoHEBRALAZHFHEESERERR-F
——HENB-BRARLRAZHEMEESEFE
RARRZREBEZEERE - BELEFHEE
MAABEEBREME (KE)EL (£S5
e REESHABEH R ZREE L
B - WOIRBERBENSHSTAIER
BBEHMAB2EREE  FRNERER
B AE2E8 BALEBERB_+ERE
P ERRERBERRE 2 EENE -

BELRABERCEBBERAF - EXKKE
WwEARLAF - AIRRITAERQA - BBER
(ZR)BRAF - EREEEZERBRLF - H
BEEERERAF  AEATARREER
BRAF  REEBREEERLTF - BAISEE
XBERRARINALEBEZERERLIA 2E
NHHTES (MEOAEBBMSXZMAR
RBERETZAT) - WEETHEHEZER
SEAERXARFANBEZRERAE (M
EREBHMERZMARITAER LT 2R
A)ZBIFHRTES AT —ZFLAE
—E-ARF-R RERESFEBRERBRA
A (—XREBEBBRERXRZMERATERLD
AR ZBILFHITES -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Report of the Directors

EEWRES

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale hypermarket stores located in the northern, southern and
eastern parts of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group (including discussions on principal
risks and uncertainties, environmental policies, compliance with
laws and regulations and key relationship with suppliers, customers
and employees), KPIs and future development of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The directors are not aware of any important events affecting the
Group since the end of the financial year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 63 of
the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$2,226,537,000 (equivalent to RMB1,828,576,000) (2016:
HK$2,358,326,000 (equivalent to RMB2,103,160,000)) as computed
in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to. RMB11,000,(2016: RMB3;000).
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Narong Chearavanont

Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed (Resigned on 28 February 2018)
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Li Wen Hai, Yang Xiaoping, Songkitti
Jaggabatara, Itthaporn Subhawong and Prasobsook Boondech,
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
Details of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the relevant circular to be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a term of one year, which is renewable and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the material
related party transactions as disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements of the annual report, none of the Directors had any
material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2017, the directors were not aware that any of
the directors had interests in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

() Long positions in shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

shares held FRE

Name of directors EEEE BERGHEE BHEHRL
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Narong Chearavanont BRI EE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNEEE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HmBEE 61,080,066 0.55%
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont MR EE 122,160,132 1.11%
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvongt 4 61,080,066 0.55%

Annual Report 2017 £ &



Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

EEWREE
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of associated Number of shareholding
Name of directors corporations shares held FRE
ExE8 HEEEEE FEROEE BHUBEML
Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
TEELEE
Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
BNFEERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, in shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company:
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Name of shareholders

BREM

C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH")

Worth Access Trading Limited
(“Worth Access”)

CPG Overseas Company Limited
(“CPG Overseas”)

Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”)

C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited ([CPHJ)

Worth Access Trading Limited
(IT'Worth Access )

CPG Overseas Company Limited
(TCPG Overseas |)

Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited ([CPGJ)

RERARHFRZR G
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Notes shares held BEREMN
it = KRERBHAE =Rl
1 18,083,521,003 164.11%
(1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
(1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
(1) 18,450,001,399 167.44%
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EEWRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth
Access’ shareholding in CPH. CPG Overseas had declared an interest
in the same 18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding
in Worth Access. CPG had declared an interest in the same
18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas
and an interest in 366,480,396 shares by virtue of its shareholding in a
subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had any interest or short positions
in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the material
related party transactions as disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements of the annual report, there were no contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) was in force for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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Report of the Directors

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
of the Group are set out in “Employees, training and remuneration
policy” on page 14 of this annual report.

The emolument payable to any director of the Company was
determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities within
the Group and his anticipated time and effort to be spent on the
Company’s matters.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The Share Option Scheme was established for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of
the Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors and
employees of the Group and those persons that, in the opinion of
the Directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the
Group.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, being 979,624,307 ordinary shares of the
Company, based on 9,796,243,070 issued ordinary shares of the
Company as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
in 2012. Such maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon
exercise of all the share options which may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme now represents 8.89% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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EEWRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer (including the date of offer granted),
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$10 in total by
grantee.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Directors but shall commence after the grant and end on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share
options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the date the
share option is offered; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of
the ordinary share of the Company.

As of the date of this report, there were no share options granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme” above,
neither the Company nor any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement
during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the total convertible preference shares of
the Company in issue included 1,518,807,075 Series A convertible
preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference
shares, 3,671,509,764 Series. C [convertible preference shares and
2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares.
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Report of the Directors

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

1,518,807,075 Series A convertible preference shares were issued
on 31 October 2008 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated
17 May 2007 as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Details are set out in the circular dated 29 June 2007.

3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference shares were issued
on 30 June 2010 pursuant to the Agreement dated 16 March 2010
to redeem the convertible bonds issued by the Company at the
aggregate principle amount of HK$1,519,873,031. Details are set

out in the circular dated 1 April 2010.

3,673,765,764 Series C convertible preference shares were issued
on 23 December 2011 pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement
dated 14 October 2011 and the Open Offer as set out in the
prospectus dated 2 December 2011. Net proceeds from the
issue of Series C convertible preference shares amounted to
HK$805,056,000. Up to 31 December 2016, a total of 2,256,000
Series C convertible preference shares were converted to ordinary
shares.

2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares were issued
on 1 January 2012 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated 14
October 2011 as the consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Details are set out in the circular dated 1 November 2011.

The holders of these preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at any
time at the conversion ratio of 1 to 1, each subject to the minimum
public float requirement under the Listing Rules. Adjustments to
the conversion price are only made upon dilutive and other events
which are related to the Company issuing new shares or convertible
debts.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option Scheme”,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into or subsisted during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed resigned as executive director and Vice
Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech was appointed as an independent
director of CP ALL Public Company Limited (a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Kidsland International Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase Agreements

On 4 November 2016, the Company entered into the 2017 Purchase
Agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) to
purchase certain merchandise from HOEL or any of the HOEL
Related Entities (as defined in that agreement) for the term from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Leases and Sub-leases

On 26 May 2008, Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Kunshan
Tailian”) and Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. (BILE¥BEREHE
BMRAT]) (“Kunshan Ximin”) entered into a lease (the “Kunshan
Lease”) in relation to a property located at West side of North
Changjiang Road, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan, the PRC, with an area of
approximately 29,466 square meters for the term from 26 May 2008
to 24 November 2024. On 15 December 2014, Shanghai Kinghill Ltd.
(EBFHRBREAMRDT) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) acquired 100% equity
interest in Kunshan Xinmin.

Annual Report 2017 &£ #&

BiE L mHRAE13.51B(1)E F
REER

RBELAERERRRAZATEEREES
Eo

Prasobsook Boondech%t £ ¥ Z{EACP ALL
Public Company Limited (—REZEEH X
SHETHAR)MNBIES -

BHEMAEERZERNALEFZERERD T
(—REBBBEXZMARATDERLETZ
RNA) ZBILFHITES -

REBEXRS
BRI 15

RZE-XRNE+—-AWNA &2QFHHigh
Orient Enterprises Limited (THOELJ) 8T =
Z — + FHRE & UL mHOELS, £ MHOELAE
Bt (RzhEeex) KBEETER &8
BE-Z—tF—B—HEBE-ZE—-—HhF+=A
=+—Hli-

HEHRE BiHE

RZEENFREA-+AA BLEEETE
Roaal((BELRE]) HEBLEREWERSRLD
A(TELERDBRUATEELTATERT
BB (EELN29,466F F2K) 2 WI%EET 58
EnE(BLUEERR) ] FHE-ZZENF
EA=Zt+ABARBE=ZZ-NE+—-—F=+WIA
I -RZB-—NME+=-A+HHB LBFH%
RERAR(MTLBHH]) WEEILZERB100%
RARER o



Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-leases (Continued)

On 31 October 2008, Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Hefei
Ailian”) and Tongshan Development & Management (Hefei) Co., Ltd.
(I LEX£EERE () BMR2ATE) (“Tongshan Enterprise”) entered
into a lease (the “Hefei Lease”) in relation to a property located at
Southeast Corner, Junction of He’an Road and Furong Road, Hefei
Economic & Technological Development Area, Hefei, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 23,100 square meters for the term from
1 November 2008 to 17 March 2025. The Hefei Lease Assignment
Agreement taken effect from 1 April 2014 was entered into among
Hefei Ailian, Tongshan Enterprise and Anhui Zhengtong Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (ZBEREX AR T) (“Anhui Zhengtong”) to assign the
Hefei Lease from Tongshan Enterprise to Anhui Zhengtong.

Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Shantou
Lotus”) and Ping An Trust Co., Ltd. (FZ{EstEREFE2T) (“Ping
An Trust”) entered into a lease (the “Shantou Lease”) in relation to
a property located at Feng Ze Zhuang, Changping Road, Longhu
District, Shantou, the PRC, with an area of approximately 20,400
square meters for the term from 12 December 2005 to 11 December
2025. The Shantou Lease was subsequently revised and assumed
by JBHEFPREZHER AT (“Xinping Investment”) as lessor on
1 December 2013. On 5 March 2015, Shanghai Kinghill acquired
100% equity interest in Xinping Investment.

On 30 December 2016, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) and Shanghai Kinghill entered into a lease (the
“2017 Super Brand Mall Lease”) in relation to a portion of the Super
Brand Mall situated at No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road, Pudong New
District, Shanghai, the PRC, with a total floor area of approximately
13,500 square meters for the monthly rental of RMB1,500,000,
equivalent to an annual rental of RMB18,000,000 for the term from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

On 30 December 2016, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (EAEERE#ESEHBRATE) (“CTCREM”)
entered into a sub-lease (the “2017 SLS Sub-Lease”), for the term
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, for a monthly rent of
RMB555,750, equivalent to an annual rent of RMB6,669,000 from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017, plus (i) a commission of 5% on
the excess of subletting rental income received by CTCREM over
the rent receivable by SLS under the 2017 SLS Sub-Lease; and
(i) a commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by CTCREM derived from the property located at No. 2128
Yang Gao Zhong Lu, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 6,527 square meters.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transaction Related Details

Kunshan Tailian, Hefei Ailian, Shantou Lotus and SLS are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC.

CPG is interested in approximately 64.93% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and is therefore the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

As each of Anhui Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill,
CTCREM and HOEL is also an indirect subsidiary of CPG, Anhui
Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and HOEL
are connected persons of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under each of the Kunshan Lease,
the Hefei Lease, the Shantou Lease, the 2017 Super Brand
Mall Lease and the 2017 SLS Sub-Lease constituted continuing
connected transactions exempt from independent shareholders’
approval but were subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2017 Purchase Agreement
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions for
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules and were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 16
December 2016.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 25 November 2013, 14
March 2014, 15 December 2014, 6 March 2015, 4 November 2016
and 30 December 2016 and the circular dated 25 November 2016.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transaction Related Details (Continued)

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements
during the year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 are as
follows:
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Company in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association or laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 23 February 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 63 to 137, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

A BRESEKSEED

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

FEH G BHRENZLID)

Refer to note 1(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
HAEENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HMMETNMEEZSE

The Group had net current liabilities of RMB
2,796.6million as at 31 December 2017.
RZZ—tF+-A=+—H EBESENRDEEFHE
B AR #2,796,600,0007T °

The Group finances its operations and expansion
plans through a combination of operating cash flows
generated from sales of merchandise and leasing store
premises and loans from banks and its controlling
shareholder. The Company’s controlling shareholder,
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited
(“CPH”), has also confirmed that it will continue to
provide adequate support to the Group so as to enable
it to continue its operations for the foreseeable future.
EEELUEREE  HEEHPERERTRIERRRER
HEEENEELESFREENRERFEIZELR - EAF
B R EIER I ERC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited ([CPH) th it B| — 3 A FERZ S 4 B EHEE
RMUREXE UEERTRAREREBERLEF -

Based on the cash flow forecast of the Group for
the twelve-month period ending 31 December 2018
prepared by the directors and unutilised financing
facilities on hand, together with the support from its
controlling shareholder, the directors have concluded
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

BiE EEEEEHEHRBE-_ZT-/\F+-A=+—-HL
TZEAPEBcRERERRRBRERERAZMEREE
HoOURKREBERRRNZE S SEEESRR/UESE
REAMBEHFSVBBRRBESE -

Our audit procedures to assess the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern assumption
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements included the following:
BMETGEEBURBEREERGREASHBRRRS
BER T TUTEFER:

Y/

o walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the assessment of going concern, including
the preparation of cash flow forecasts;

. HEBRIARBERFTRE  ULNEHELE
(BRGFHRENEFEAR) FHBEARAIZHER
5t BREARE OB RE

° comparing the future expected cash flows in the
cash flow forecast with the Group’s business
plan approved by the board of directors;

. HREREBFAPHARREPRERER BEH
EEEUENERTEMES
° comparing the key assumptions adopted by

management in preparing the cash flow forecast,
including revenue and lease income, turnover
days for inventories and trade payables, store
opening plans and relevant capital expenditure,
with historical data and assessing whether any
material variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

. HEEEERAURSRERRSRANERRS
(BREVAMESKRA - EFMEMRRBEREH -
FRIEETEIMMEEEARA ) @ HELBIBIFLLR
WRERME SEEXBNTH FEEEEKX
ZEREHERMOES

o assessing the sensitivities of the cash flow
forecast by considering plausible changes to the
key assumptions adopted by management and
considering the resulting impact on the going
concern assumption;

. REZBEEEERMANBRBERNGELY  THR
EREARNBRE  IEZREFELSLERREEN

-/ $BR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

e

FARETEE(E)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern (Continued)

i BRESFELCERD (E)

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMPWESNETEEZSEE

We identified the assessment of the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern as a key audit matter
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to the future cash flows to be
generated from operations and the ability of the Group
to renew or obtain financing facilities as and when
necessary.

BMEFE SEEFELLEEIER ARRETSE
AAHFE SEEFECERIBANEEEERHNRR
MHAE  LERERALETDHEEZARARREREUAR
EEENEENENINESHEFEZRED -

° obtaining written confirmations from banks and
related parties in respect of the existence and
terms of existing debt facilities available during
the twelve-month period ending 31 December
2018; and

. REE-—ZF-N\F+_A=t—HLEtZEAAHHE

REEURZEBRERER - BRTHNEBAL
HBEEEER &

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the directors’
assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. SRBATEAEANER ZRESHESHBR
RTPERE BEEEUSECEEEREERNZF
fHEVIREE -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

8B R (E B FF A

statements.

Refer to note 11 and the accounting policies set out in notes 1(g) and 1(l)(ii) to the consolidated financial

EB A S TSR AR BT AT 1R MY AE1(9)E21()(i) T B B9 & 2T BUE o

The Key Audit Matter
HRETBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNESOWEEZSE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s goodwill, which
amounted to RMB2,654.3 million, was allocated to
three groups of cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
representing the East, South, and North China Regions.
RIE—tF+ZA=1+—H > BEEZHEARARE
2,654,300,0007T ' PEEER - EMRELBEZ=E
ReE4BEN((ReEELENNA -

An annual impairment assessment of goodwill is
performed by management. The recoverable amounts
of the assets allocated to each group of CGUs are
determined by management based on value in use
calculations.

EEEYHBBETEFERENL EEERBEIEKETEA
ReELBUEENEREEMEETH I WEHEE -

The value in use was estimated by preparing
discounted cash flow forecasts. The preparation of
discounted cash flow forecasts involves the exercise
of significant management judgement, in particular in
forecasting future revenue, future gross profit margins
and future store operating and administrative expenses
and in determining the long-term growth rates and
discount rates applied.
FREERBARRURBSREBEMRMEERN - BHIRER
EREEBRNERRIREBEBERNHE - 1552788
REWA ~ RREFMEMRREHELENEEER - UK
BERMBREMBERE

No impairment losses of goodwill were recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2017 as the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs as determined on the
basis set out above were higher than their carrying
amounts.
HARBLAEEABEERREEEEN2ATREIEESR
HIREE  #YERBE-_T—tF+-A=+—HLHF
ERIABDEREBE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill included the following:

HARFEBEBEEERERFAATUTETREFBE

° evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of goodwill and assets
allocated to each group of CGUs;

. A EEEHREELABEUMNEIUARSBEESE
ReELBEVANBHENEESR,

° using our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. BEMEABEEERNHY TSR|ITEAEL 2
RE AEEEEERABRRE R EFAREIE
AW E

° comparing the significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future
revenue, future gross profit margins and future
store operating and administrative expenses
with the relevant data in the financial budgets
approved by the board of directors, industry
reports and agreements signed subsequent to
the reporting date;

J HRERREREAKRTEANERREAE (BFEKR
RBPA > REREFEMAREEREEER) HE
EEMRENMBEE - TERESNME B RRERT
Bt RS L

° comparing the significant inputs used in
discounted cash flow forecasts prepared in the
prior year with the current year’s performance to
assess how accurate the prior year’s discounted
cash flow forecasts were and making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified;

. BEFHERERASREARMEANERRE AE
BARFEEBEELLL UG TFHRRRERENR
BHNEREE TOEERBHMEBEZEZENRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

W

FARETEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill (Continued)

BB R E N ()

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNETEEZEE

We identified assessing potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessment prepared by management is complex
and involves a significant degree of judgement in
determining the assumptions, particularly the long term
growth rates and the discount rates applied, and could
be subject to management bias.
BMETEHENETRERPREARETSER  BAE
BEMERHAOBENGREMN ERERIZK (LHER
FREEANRPEREMPERR) P RERAE - L ATER
EEENROMBATE -

o assessing the long-term growth rate and
discount rate used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
retailers;

. ZHRHLHMEAESZERNRE  FEBERRER
EERTPEANRPEREMPBRE

° obtaining sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charges for the year and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and

. NSEEEEREURRENESARSHARAN
ERBREBNHBMIN  LERAMEARFE
BEHBEMEENEEURREEFEEERERDHN
PR R

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of goodwill, including the key
assumptions and sensitivities to changes in such
assumptions, with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

J SRBTENAENCHRE  EZREEUBHRERTE
BERERENENRE  BREREARBRRREZER
REBHNHBMED N -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s stores

ETERNYE FENRBEUREREENEERE N

financial statements.

Refer to notes 9 and 10 and the accounting policies set out in notes 1(i), 1(j) and 1(l)(ii) to the consolidated

FEEE SR ENA 9 R10KURHTEE10) ~ 10)51()()F #AIE 5 B °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNESOWEEZSE

Certain stores of the Group have sustained losses
from operations or have experienced decreasing
store turnover or decreasing gross cash flows from
operation.

HR ESEETERGERKLEEE  REBEEBRD
REBRERED

Management considers that these factors are
indicators of potential impairment whereby there is
a risk that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (which represent
favourable lease interests) of certain of the Group’s
stores may not be recoverable in full through the future
cash flows to be generated from trading operations of
these stores or from disposal of these assets.
EBEEBRAAUDEERENTR Bt ZZEHZY
¥ FERKBREFEE (REFNEERR) WREE
B FEURELIBBEZSEHELREELEMEEN
RARBEEREFUZHKE MR -

Management reviews the performance of individual
stores at the end of each reporting period to identify
stores for which indicators of impairment exist.
REEARSHR  EEERNIREMAEE  UEHE
WER 2 & e

For those stores where indicators of impairment were
identified, the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets attributable to
these stores is determined by management based on
value in use calculations on a store-by-store basis.
In determining the value in use of these assets,
discounted cash flow forecasts were prepared by
management for each store for which indicators of
impairment were identified.

REBBERETR 2EH  EEESRESRAEEH
MEREBESEYX FEERRBEURELEENTWRE
HE EEEASHKCHEBNARENR 2 /EHERNERR
EREER UBEHEREE-

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
certain of the Group’s stores included the following:
BMRTE EEEETERNYE  FENRBURE
REENBERERMATHETREFESRE

° challenging the Group’s impairment assessment
model by assessing the impairment indicators
identified by management and considering
whether the discounted cash flow forecasts on
a store-by-store basis supported the carrying
value of the relevant assets. We also considered
whether the assessment indicated that a reversal
of a past impairment was necessary;

. FRTEEBREEINAETRRERERMEHEE
HELNERRERERAIREXHHBAEENR
HEE $ SEENHEFEEIRHERSE K
MRERZE LM eFE RS & U ENRE

° using our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. BMERBEEESRNHHZSRBTEFENZR
E At EREEERRUVGRREREBRSAER
M7 %

° comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, including
future growth rates in revenue, future gross
margins and future store operating and
administrative expenses, with the historical
performance of these stores, store budgets
approved by store management, industry reports
and agreements signed subsequent to the
reporting date;

. HUERBESRERBPEANBEREAE (BEXR
RPABRE - RREMRAMARREHEENEE
ER)EZEERNBEIRE - EEBRENT K
BE - TERENBEHRBITNIHRELHL
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

e

FARETEE(E)

Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s

stores (Continued)

ETERNYE FENRBURELEENETRENTMGE (F)

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN BTNMERZEE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating future growth
rates in revenue, future gross margins and future
store operating and administrative expenses and in
determining the discount rates applied.
BRRBEREABNERRINEEBEEANHE  LER
FERFTARBRBABRER - RREFZR - RREHEERE
BER URETERNBRE-

We identified the potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain
of the Group’s stores as a key audit matter because
determining the indicators of impairment and the level
of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement, particularly in forecasting
future cash flows and estimating the recoverable
amounts of these assets, both of which are inherently
uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
HMSEEE TERNYE FEIRBURELEEN
BRERERSERETER  BRAERERENRNE
EXRF(WMA) K FRIEEESENHEED  LER
FRARRBRERENEFZEEENTHEEE  WEER
AAETHEMN  BUEREZEEENRAOELA

comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts prepared
in the prior year with the current year’s
performance of these stores to assess the
accuracy of the prior year’s discounted cash
flow forecasts and enquiring of management for
any significant variations identified;
KBREFARENMERBESREBUPEANERE
ANERZEEHEFNEE  UFEETFRRRE
MR ERY YR EREARETNEREEN
FR&A

assessing the discount rates used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, by
benchmarking against other similar retailers;
ERUHLHEMEAETEFNRE  FHEBRRRATR
BERPEANBRREE;

obtaining a sensitivity analysis of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charge for the year and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and
DSEEBHNGERRNERRENERBRANE
BBRETHRMESN > XEERALHFEREE
BENFEURREFEEEBRRENTR R

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s
stores, including the key assumptions and
sensitivities to changes in such assumptions,
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
SRATEFEAUZERE  ZEGESUBRRTH
B SEEETEMANYE FEMRBURE
FEENEEREMENIKE  ERBRRERY
LERREBNBRBMEDAN -

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Recognition of supplier income

HERBRARR

BB GE I BERE M (m) BT HY B AT B

Refer to the accounting policies set out in note 1(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
BERESSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHEFOATEEZSE

The Group earns supplier income under several types
of different arrangements with its suppliers. The
arrangements vary in nature and size and include
volume based discounts and rebates and fees
earned from assisting suppliers with their marketing
campaigns.

EEERBEMERIT LZETRZHRMMHAEREA -
ZEZHEAMEHERAE LEETE BREEREEEN
FMAIRF - LUK R B 17 By (PR R 1 1T & 85 E Bp i W B Y
BgH-

Volume based discounts and rebates are recognised as
a deduction from the cost of purchase of merchandise
when the performance conditions associated with them
are met.
REBEENHIANRAMNEFSHBERRGERBERTH
BRAB mERE R AR -

Fees earned from assisting suppliers with their
marketing campaigns are earned over the period of
the contractual agreements with individual suppliers.
The total income recognised is, therefore, based on
the expected entitlement earned up to the financial
reporting date under each agreement.

8t By (L FE B 1T & 85T B T BRER AV B B J0 A B4 B 4
AT YNERBERANEIR/BA - ALt ZERBATS
BESOHZBEVBHRR B PRABBRNNENMEE -

We identified recognition of supplier income as a key
audit matter because the size and complexity of the
arrangements with suppliers increase the risk that the
consolidated financial statements may not promptly or
accurately reflect the Group’s entitlements under the
contracts agreed with suppliers.
BEMEHERRABIBRERERETSIE  RAEMERE
BRI VZHNRENEMESEN SEEEMERBHME
NHEETWERAREEEERSUBRR P RS ERE
Hb S BR B LB o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
supplier income included the following:

BRI EEERTRABRREMATHERTREFEE

o understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key internal controls over the
recognition of supplier income;

. T ML E IR E N R R WA B FT R A BV 8
BAMEFER BERABELHBRYE

° assessing the Group’s revenue recognition
policies in respect of supplier income by
inspecting the terms and conditions set out in
each type of standard agreement used with
suppliers with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

. EEHEEBEANSEARERBRHII VIR
MM UFHE SEEHRHERBRAEIHBE

RESRATETENZRE

° evaluating, on a sample basis, the inputs to
the information technology applications which
calculate volume based discounts and rebates
by comparing the inputs with underlying
documentation, including sales and purchase
volume data and discount and rebate rates in
the respective agreements;

J FRMEBEHREBEETHNMNRINVENR HE
AR W AE  WEZEEHNEBREXH (B
HEMFEHBEURSOHRERTHI T INAER
=) {EHLE ;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, the recognition of
fees earned from assisting suppliers with their
marketing campaigns by inspecting underlying
documentation, including supplier income
agreements or confirmations from suppliers
in respect of the fulfilment of performance
conditions; and

. ZRMEEMEB G (EEHEBRRABESA
HEBEBRENBARRENERE) UF L BB
BHEBETEHIHMUNERARAERR ) R
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

w

FARETEE(E)

Recognition of supplier income (Continued)

HEERARZ (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNETEEZEE

° comparing, on a sample basis, the amount
of supplier income received by the Group for
the year with that confirmed by the respective
suppliers through the “invoice-tracking system”,
which is an on-line platform accessible by both
the suppliers and the Group.

. ZEBMELR SEERAFERRERES 2BA
TR EAEHENER RRERAR | (HERD
kR BEEEYABEHNKLTE) IRIAZBUAE
B o

Valuation of inventories

FEMEE

FBRHGE TS IRA M 13K WAL 1(m)Fr #8927t B ©

Refer to note 13 and the accounting policies set out in note 1(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

FEDBEAR TR FEME D 2BEETIR -

Management reviews the status of inventories on hand
on a regular basis to identify slow moving items and
may determine either to provide markdowns or to
return certain items to suppliers at cost after deduction
of unearned supplier income.
EEEEHRERAEFENMR - LEBIFHEER » AR
ERBFEERME  NEMBRARBREAHERWARRAHE
BRIERADHREF S E R

The provision for inventories is calculated based on an
inventory ageing analysis, actual sales and purchase
data and management experience and judgement
regarding estimated markdowns as well as the current
inventory profile.

FEZRE DREFEERS T - BERHEEEREBHIE
MEIR fE 5t PR E AR B AT 7 &R0 B 28 B8 0 4 I i =t
R

No provision is provided for inventories returnable to
suppliers at their original cost based on the terms set
out in certain purchase agreement.
HNRBEHERBHBSEGETIRRERASROEERFH
FE. A FHREE -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

EPRNFEFEGERMATHENRFRE

° understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s key internal controls over
inventory management, including the purchase
of inventories and review of inventory status;

. THENFGCEEERFEERE (BRBEFENE
BiFEME) IR ANBERAIZFER - Bl
FMIBRELHBE RN

° assessing whether the provision for inventories
at the year end date was consistent with
the Group’s inventory provision policy by
recalculating the provision for inventories based
on the percentages and other parameters in
the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the Group’s inventory provision
policy with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

. 2B BEEEFERBRRTHREBILLMEAM
SHENHEFERB UL ERENRFRZ
FERBRAHEFERBARE -, RER E&
ENFERERRREHERITSTEINESR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEME (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETTBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMMETNMEEZSE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because determining an appropriate provision
for inventories involves significant management
judgement in determining the markdowns necessary to
sell slow moving inventories which cannot be returned
to suppliers.

EMBRFEMESERENSEH AREEEENFE
BEk EEEFMNEETHRDHERNFHEER 2B
B FHERHE -

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in
the inventory ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing the
details with the respective purchase records for
the selected sample;

. BRHEBELRNFEERBERAMIIER RS HKE
i

SHEBENERERR  LZSEREREAE
M ER B RS E I LL
° evaluating the Group’s inventory provision

policy by comparing management’s forecasts
of markdowns for a sample of inventories in
prior years to the historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years;
and

. ERNEREEHBAEFEFEREBEREAINMER
REABLHER BN RBEFENRESBFY
te o 7Ffh EXEENFERBEHRXE K

° assessing the enforceability of inventory return
arrangements agreed with suppliers, on a
sample basis, by inspecting the terms set in the
respective purchase agreements, and evaluating
the Group’s inventory provision policy for
returnable items by comparing the actual
losses resulting from the return of inventories
to suppliers, including additional transportation
costs and the reduction in purchase related
supplier income, with the total amount of
inventory returns in prior years.

. ZRHMERELRBHEPEINGER  HEUEED
RIVFEREZHFHN AR HITHETME - LB
BREFEROHEBMELENEREX (BREEN
BRAAMEBEHREIWVARD) BEBEFENE
BRI RAEELL - Mt ERETREERNG
ERBEX -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern:
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wai Ka Lun.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 February 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mERER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-Z-—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(UAR¥THREN)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff EE AR®T R AR®T T
Revenue PN 2 9,655,191 10,085,679
Cost of sales THER AR 13 (7,918,689) (8,347,148)
Gross profit EF 1,736,502 1,738,531
Other revenue Hbug 3 605,349 539,608
Other net loss Hihg5i8 558 3 (41,531) (415,507)
Distribution and store operating costs BRI A R B R A (1,707,119) (1,892,055)
Administrative expenses THER (266,395) (402,505)
Profit/(loss) from operations e (FE) 326,806 (431,928)
Finance costs [N =922 4(a) (101,554) (82,783)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAIER, (B58) 4 225,252 (514,711)
Income tax Frig®t 5 (46,212) (22,889)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBHN, (FHE) 179,040 (537,600)
Attributable to: LR AR
Equity shareholders of the Company YNNI 179,040 (537,587)
Non-controlling interests RS - (13)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEBN (BR) 179,040 (537,600)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER (FHE) 8
Basic (RMB cents) EARX (ARED) 0.80 (2.41)
Diluted (RMB cents) BE (ARED) 0.80 (2.41)

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBEmkHEMEEWERE
7L S | j:E\ ﬁ & Z~ E ﬁ
e
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z—tHF+-A=Z+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T
Profit/(loss) for the year EEBN (BR) 179,040 (537,600)
Other comprehensive income for the FEHMEEmYE
year (after tax and reclassification (RBRESERAER)
adjustments)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEAEHEEIEEH
to profit or loss: ZIERH :
Exchange differences on translation of BmEREARLFE
financial statements of entities outside ( THE] ) AT 8
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) KR cELEZE (12,398) 12,118
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZ2HKRFALE 166,642 (525,482)
Attributable to: BUF A4
Equity shareholders of the Company VNN 166,642 (525,469)
Non-controlling interests RS - (13)
166,642 (525,482)

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial ZE70Z137E M3 EHREZIH ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R =

As at 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

REZZB-—tF+ZA=1t—-H (UARBITREMN)

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—XREF
+=A +=A
=+—H =t+—H
Note RMB’OO_O RMB’000
M &E ARET ARETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥  EERREE 9 1,690,445 1,560,671
Interests in leasehold land held for eEHE EMLH
own use under operating leases HEER 9 122,771 129,064
1,813,216 1,689,735
Intangible assets BEE 10 137,455 145,568
Goodwill (GRS 11 2,654,252 2,654,252
Prepaid lease payments for premises FBIYEEEE 10,303 10,851
Other long-term prepayments HthRMBENLEN - 9,461
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 23(b) 34,972 35,647
| 4,850,198 | 4,545,514
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments for premises %Eﬁ%%*ﬁ 4,099 5,388
Inventories FE 13 1,144,710 1,240,544
Trade and other receivables EE N H A UK 14 849,084 830,302
Pledged bank deposits BIRMRITER 15 59,865 59,545
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEE 16 166,115 204,920
| %223,873 2,340,699
Current liabilities TﬁEJJEF
Trade and other payables EE N HMERE 17 3,786,001 3,885,544
Bank loans and overdrafts ﬁETTETA&ﬁSE 18 229,946 222,900
Loans from controlling shareholder S ERRRER 19 913,009 -
Other loans Htt B 20 43,402 -
Obligations under finance leases MERESEE 21 12,909 11,345
Current taxation BY A% 18 23(a) 27,237 17,823
Provisions B’ 22 7,978 28,069
... 5020482 - 4,165,681
Net current liabilites = #BAGEF&HE | | (2,796,609)| _(1,824,982)
Total assets less current liabilities WEERABERE 1,853,589 2,720,532

BT0ORITHEZMETD AT B HRER 28 M -

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R |k
=

As at 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RE-ZB-—tF+ZA=Z+-R(UARBITREMN)

31 December | 31 December
2017 2016
—EB—tF| ZEF-AF
+=A +=A
=t+—H =t+-—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M EE AREFT T ARET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from controlling shareholder BAZEERRRER 19 - 971,877
Other loans Hibh &K 20 - 46,446
Obligations under finance leases MERESEE 21 129,530 142,439
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 23(b) 34,489 36,842
... |. ... 164019 1,197,604
NET ASSETS EEEH 1,689,570 1,522,928
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERK HE
Share capital il 24(c) 405,726 405,726
Reserves & 1,283,844 1,117,202
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,689,570 1,522,928

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

February 2018.

Soopakij Chearavanont

R-B-NE-A-+=ZHEESSHERS

RETIE -

Umroong Sanphasitvong

BN Director
Director zE
EE

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TAERERBHERK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-Z-—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(UAR¥THREN)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAARRERE
Non-
Share Share  Revaluaion  Exchange Accumulated controlling

capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
Rx  RfEE  EfiE%  EXRE  ZifER BE  FERER aE

(note 24(c))  (note 24(d)  (note 24(d))  (note 24(c)

(Wa2qe) (W) (W) (WE24(0)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  AR®Tn ARETr ARETR ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7E-F-H 405,726 1,933,161 (9,166) 240,885 (622,209 2,048,397 1624 2,050,021
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - [37R8T)  (337.587) (13 (537,600)
Other comprehensive income £t 2E & - - - 12,118 - 12,118 - 12,18

Total comprehensive income for
the year FERENAAE - - - 12,118 (637,587)  (525,469) (18 (525,482
Disposaoftwosubsidres  WERSKESH S N S S S o L L)
RoF-AF
At 31 December 2016 tZR=t-A 405726 1,933,161 (9,166) 253,003 (1,059,796) 1,522,928 - 15298
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-F-H 405726 1,933,161 (9,166) 253,003 (1,059,796 1,522,928 - 152,08
Profit for the year EERA - - - - 179040 179,040 - 179040
Other comprehensive income ~~ EAi 2 - - - (12,398) - (12,398) - (12,399)
Total comprehensive income for
Mevear  FEREMESE o o O L L B T Teee
HoE-tF

At 31 December 2017 tZB=1-H 405726 1,933,161 (9,166) 240605  (880,756) 1,689,570 - 1,689,570

The notes on pages 70 to 137

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTREHRRK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-_ZE-—tHFt+=-A=1+-—

=

AIEFE(MARBTREMN)

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MiEE AR TR ARETT
Operating activities EIEEK
Profit/(loss) before taxation MEBIADER, . (BE) 225,252 (514,711)
Adjustments for: BT HAE
Depreciation of property, ¥ EERZBZFE 40
plant and equipment 187,614 185,656
Amortisation of land lease premium T EER 2 #E 4(c) 6,293 6,294
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 2 #H 4(c) 8,113 10,250
Impairment losses REEE - 351,206
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  EERSEEZ
plant and equipment FEE 3 10,902 26,437
Gain on disposal of two subsidiaries HEMRKM B QR 2 mF - (148)
Finance costs =N 4(a) 101,554 82,783
Interest income B A 3 (2,273) (2,633)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SMNEEERE ORFl)
B8 3 (73,049) 75,861
Loss/(gain) on the forward foreign REHNNEHEENZ
exchange contracts &8, C&a#l) 3 103,678 (37,849)
Operating profit before changes in EELESEBHI2EEER
working capital 568,084 183,146
Decrease in prepaid lease payments ENYEEEERD
for premises 1,837 17,462
Decrease/(increase) in inventories ERL, (Ehm) 95,834 (21,222)
Increase in bank deposits pledged for ’T? SHRERREFERZE
inventory purchases and guarantees 1717 SRR H 42 A0
to landlords (320) (109)
Increase in trade and other receivables %E&Eﬂﬂ@”ﬁl%ﬁlﬁiﬁ?ﬂﬂ (58,601) (83,337)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ”"L&/H\ﬁﬂ?sﬁ
other payables ) iiju (264,573) 150,887
Cash generated from operations EEEL RS 342,261 246,827
PRC income tax paid 2P EBIE 23(a) (38,476) (35,236)
Net cash generated from operating EEEBREECRESFE
activities 303,785 211,591

BTOE1B7TE Z M I AR B |ER 2 80 o

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

SMERERERK
to

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-Z-—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(UAR¥THREN)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MiaE AR®T T ARBT T
Investing activities REXEK
Payment for purchases of property, BEVME EERSZHEZ
plant and equipment Ok (225,768) (198,197)
Interest received EEISE 2,273 2,633
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE EERSZHEZ
plant and equipment ;IE 2,135 4,336
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEELXRIEHTWSLZ
seven stores to WSL BERNFE - 26,657
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEMXHB AR Z
two subsidiaries BERANFEEE - 4,738
Net cash used in investing activities REXERGEAZEHSFE (221,360) (159,833)
Financing activities ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERZNRIE 16(b) 329,549 204,900
Proceeds from loans from ERBRRERZRIE
controlling shareholder - 971,877
Repayment of bank loans RITERZBR 16(b) (304,503)|  (1,102,386)
Capital element of finance leases paid TRMEHE 2 AL IH 16(b) (11,345) (9,895)
Interest element of finance leases paid ﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁiﬂ%iﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ 16(b) (14,690) (15,725)
Interest on bank loans paid TERZAE 16(b) (10,268) (48,848)
Interest on other loans and loans ,H\ﬂﬂﬁ ARERBERERZ
from controlling shareholder paid FE 16(b) (66,084) (1,083)
Interest on issuance of bank RITHEZHALERFE
accepted bills 16(b) (495) (8,869)
Loan arrangement and guarantee ZNERTHRERER
fees paid 16(b) (1,889) (21,723)
Cash paid on settlement of REMNERESNEER
the forward foreign exchange contracts i zBis 16(b) (22,355) -
Net cash used in financing activities MEXEKEAZHEESFE (102,080) (31,752)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
cash equivalents W) R (19,655) 20,006
Effect of foreign exchange NEEZRES TS
rate changes (1,150) 1,072
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HBZEER
at 1 January REEH 186,920 165,842
Cash and cash equivalents R+=A=+—-HB=x2
at 31 December ReRBEZE 16(a) 166,115 186,920

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

v

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

As the Group’s hypermarket stores are all located in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries, the financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,796.6 million (2016:
RMB1,825.0 million).

In view of this circumstance, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

1

TESTEE

(a)

(b)

BREH

AMBHRECREEESTHNAE
([EBEHMAE]) FEMGZAEE
REBMBREER ([EBMBR
HEA ) - WEREEREER 2R
BB BIBHEED - FBEER
([EBGER]) R2E  BBAR
S RARBBLAMRAIKERTE
Lo RIMBRRTHFEBEBHER
SIAERARZES EMRA (LHR
Al )) 2 ERBEERI - TXHIAE
B EREABRME -

BRI ASEEMETERER
A AREE R A QBRI S
B P ERA 2 # 5] RASR] BB B 3%
HRELER - E1)RHBEARERX
ERALESRREESYEAEEEHRE
TEsTHRAR - KRN AR
REFTBEZEMEBER -

MBEBRREREE
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EzGa B BHRREBEARAREK
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HRAEE 2 REE T 2R $ E
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BT - ARAZEEE BB
&zl -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The directors note that the Group generated net cash
from operating activities of approximately RMB303.8
million during the year (2016: RMB211.6 million). With
the continuing efforts taken to streamline the Group’s
organisation structure and to reduce operating costs. The
Group made net profit of RMB179.0 million during the year
(2016: net loss of RMB537.6 million).

As disclosed in note 19, as at 31 December 2017, the
Group has loans from its controlling shareholder, C.P.
Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited (“CPH”),
amounting to approximately USD139.8 million (equivalent
to RMB913.0 million), which are repayable in December
2018.

The Company has received a letter of support from CPH,
which confirmed that it will continue to provide adequate
support to the Group so as to enable it to continue its
operations for the foreseeable future. The Directors
consider that CPH will continue, and be able, to do so.

Based on the Group’s 2018 business plan and cash flow
forecast and unused bank facilities on hand, the directors
believe the Group will generate sufficient cash flows to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due in the next
twelve months. In preparing the cash flow forecast, the
directors also consider the Group’s ultimate holding
company will continue to support the Group to the extent
necessary.

In view of the above, the directors consider that the Group
will generate sufficient financial resources for its working
capital and capital expenditure requirements and that it
will be able to meet its financial obligations as when they
fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair
value as explained in note 1(h).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of estimation and judgement

(e)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 32.

Change in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cashflows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and the total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
over (ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 1(1)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(I)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(k)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 30
years after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements 13 - 20 years or over

the remaining term of

the lease, whichever

is shorter
—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 8 years
—  Motor vehicles 3 - 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories
when the stores are substantially ready for their intended
use. No depreciation is provided in respect of stores under
fit out.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

v

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects
of operating leases acquired in a business combination
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the remaining
lease term.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

— interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
—  prepaid lease payments for premises; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGU are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the moving weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, after
deducting discounts and payments from suppliers, except
where such payments represent an reimbursement of
identifiable expenditures incurred by the Group which
provide identifiable benefits to the suppliers separate from
the Group’s purchase of the supplier’s goods. Supplier
payments include cash or its equivalent in form (e.g, free
goods, credits applied to future purchase).

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(l)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(u)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and) when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment. of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and jt.is probable that the differences
will not reverse. inthe foreseeable future, oriin the case of
deductible differences; unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customers. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Promotion and service income

Promotion and service income not related to the
purchase of goods are recognised when the services
are rendered.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Except as noted below, exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
The assets and liabilities of entities outside the PRC are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

()

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Revenue represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added
taxes.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment — operation of hypermarket stores in the
PRC.

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 2 W AR 49 Z&%

AEBEREBINPREERBES -
W A 75 2 5 [E] 6] P SR R 8 45 o LB SR B
Wz FEMBRRE - TN RBES -

AEBEEERZEL MEBEEZRS
EAREBRAEIBI0% °

PR REE ZWARBRPERAEEFT
BEAREEEEMRTE Bt AEEE
B-EXRBRHRED M -RPELEREE

-

m o

3 HttWEKHMEEFE

2017 2016
—®—tE| —B-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBT T
Other revenue H iz
Leasing of store premises IEHYERERA 522,828 481,154
Other promotion and service income Hfib B K RS U A 68,131 51,829
Interest income FE YA 2,273 2633
Government grants (note (i)) BB (FYEE()) 12,117 3,992
605,349 539,608
Other net loss Hitt 5B 58
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) ERER (FE) 38 73,049 (75,861)
(Loss)/gain on the forward foreign REANEBHESNZ (BE)
exchange contracts (notes 16(b) and 17) @Al (FzE16(b)}17) (103,678) 37,849
Net gain on disposal of two subsidiaries  HEMRK B R & 2 E5FFEE - 148
Impairment losses WIEET B
- property, plant and equipment —-MFE - - EERZE - (83,017)
- intangible assets -BEERE - (10,663)
- goodwill -FHE - (257,526)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE EERSHEZ
plant and equipment =R (10,902) (26,437)
(41,531) (415,507)
Note: M EE
() Government grants represent subsidies received from local () BUTHIB) B FH BUFIRME 2 2R, -

authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

4 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

4 BRBANGEF, (FHB)
BBAIRA (B51R) B R AL

2017 2016
—E—+5F —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TT
(a) Finance costs: (a) REERA :
Interest on borrowings BEXRFE
_ Bank loans (note 16(b)) —RITER (MEE16(b) 10,268 48,848
— Other loans and loans from -HihBRK
controlling shareholder B ERRR
(note 16(b)) B2 (MEE16()) 66,084 1,083
Finance charges on obligations AMEHESET2MEER
under finance leases (MzE16(b) K2 21)
(note 16(b) and 21) 14,690 15,725
Interest on issuance of RITREZEALERFE
bank accepted bills (note 16(b)) (FizE16(b)) 495 8,869
Total interest expense on financial FRAAEFTAERZ
liabilities not at fair value through TRIBEZETE
profit or loss 91,537 74,525
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees ERTHRERER
(note 16(b)) (FtzE16(D)) 10,017 8,258
101,554 82,783
(b) Staff costs: (b) EERA :
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEHMER 775,155 896,247
Contributions to defined contribution EREFRKEEIZ
retirement plans (note 28) MR (MiEE28) 84,385 92,898
Termination benefits (note 22) BHKIEHE (FF22) 7,086 44,640
866,626 1,033,785
(c) Other items: (c) HfER :
Depreciation (note 9(a)) TE (MEE9(a)) 187,614 185,656
Amortisation s
- land lease premium (note 9(a)) -+ EEER
(FFEE9(a)) 6,293 6,294
- intangible assets (note 10) -\ EE (Mz10) 8,113 10,250
Auditors’ remuneration BN &
— audit services — BETR 3,450 3,450
Operating lease charges EEHEER
— property rentals —¥EHEE 491,227 498,387
Donations B 11 3
Cost of inventories (note 13) FERA (MFE13) 7,918,689 8,347,148
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

REEBRERZTES

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

5

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) RNEEERBERZHED:
represents:
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Current tax - PRC BEARL I — AP
Provision for the year FERE 53,657 28,097
(Over)/under-provision in respect of AFE (BE) RK2E
prior years B (5,767) 4,560
47,890 32,657
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary EERERERGERE
differences (note 23(b)) (FFsE23(b)) (1,678) (9,768)
46,212 22,889

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any
assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law”) of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2016: 25%) on their
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the
CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on the foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign invested enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2017, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had accumulated losses and
therefore no deferred tax liabilities were recognised in this
regard.

FrSBRINE M E 2 R TR R
o

HRAD TR EKEQRAHRENEE
EEEAERBER - SRAFER
RAPBBRGBAELEE -

REFSHENABEARHE 2E
PINER  AERBERERFEERER
REBERRAHSELEETMAREH -

RIBEPECEMESR L ([EMEH
E1) 0 AREBRFEKILZ KB AE
ZER R IR CEMEREA
25% (ZZE—RF 1 25%) o

Boh s REERBFET  BAAEE
BErERENR-_ZTZNE—F—H&
BBz aioEENEEE DK
BE » BW10%BERED IR 2B
M -RZFE—ttF+=ZA=+—8"
REBZHEKNBQBELERFTE
B EL SENEEZELERES

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z—tH5+-A=1t—HLEE(RBEHBEN  UARETHEN)
5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 MGEBEERZIEH (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) BHEBEAESHERN, (FE)RE
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: ARERGFEZHERNOT :
2017 2016
—EB—+tHF —E—-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TT
Profit/(loss) before taxation MBIADER, (BE) 225,252 (514,711)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before LA25% 5T & 2 BB AR R,
taxation, calculated at 25% (B8) BEHE
(2016: 25%) (note) (ZZB—RF : 25%)
(FfFEE) 56,313 (128,678)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years AEE (BEE) K2HE
45 (5,767) 4,560
Tax effect of non-deductible FAIBREERESREZ
impairment loss for goodwill S % - 64,382
Tax effect of other non-deductible E{@T\—Hﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁz
expenses BKEE 32,276 11,297
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBUMA 2 I E (2,644) 9,462)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBREER2HELE 22,312 46,389
Tax effect of temporary differences from  KERWE - EERRER
impairment losses for property, ﬁﬁ/aEﬂ{EEﬂEgH—:ﬁ
plant and equipment and intangible LAY S
assets not recognised - 23,420
Tax effect of other temporary *ﬁﬁi%ﬁ{@gﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁz
differences not recognised BEse - 15,957
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised FRAFERER 2 H AR
temporary differences utilised ER BB E (13,784) -
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised EFH1I$5HE AREEE
tax losses utilised BgEE (28,135) (4,976)
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised T GE$5HE A EE B2
tax losses recognised Ei) (14,359) -
Actual tax expense ERBIEER 46,212 22,889

Note: The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%)

is used as the operations of the Group are substantially

based in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(BRBSERBI UARBTREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBEB D AMEHEI83(NER(AT (]
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEEFRZER)BO)FE2HNIBECES
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-Z—tHF+-A=+—HLEE:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefit Share-
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
A1 RS
EShe RARENE REZRAL  BASHR Nt REEXA g
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETr  ARETn  AR%ETR
Executive directors #irEs
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE - 5,053 - 16 5,069 - 5,069
Mr. Li Wen Hai IERLE - 6,003 - 16 6,019 - 6,019
Mr. Narong Chearavanont BVt - 3,508 - - 3,508 - 3,508
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed REERA - 2,146 - 1 2,147 - 2,147
Mr. Michael Ross BRELE - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping ROERE - - - - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HRhxE - 809 - - 809 - 809
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ H#A{-%4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong £ 4 - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Viiroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit’t 4 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara% & 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong %% 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech’ % 208 - - - 208 - 208
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo i 208 - - - 208 - 208
Total e 1,040 17,609 - 38 18,682 - 18,682
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

6 EEME (&)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE-_Z-—ARE+-A=+—HLEE:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefit Share-
Directors’ benefits ~ Discretionary scheme hased
fees  inkind bonus  contributions Sub-total  payments Total
. F2oERR } \ i N
ESne  HRENE  MEZRL BASER Nt REEXA g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors Hi7Ez
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEARE - 5,008 - 15 5,018 - 5,018
Mr. Li Wen Hai SEBLL - 6,153 - 15 6,168 - 6,168
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HBmEE - 3,525 - - 3,525 - 3,525
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE%E - 4,640 - 15 4,655 - 4,655
Mr. Michael Ross Ll - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping AR - - - - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Ny - 802 - - 802 - 802
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont 1 %4 = - - - = . =
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong &4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul %t & - - - - - - -
(resigned on —E-%
10 November 2016) T-BTEEE)
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit £ 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong ltthaporn Subhawong %4 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech%4 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BEALE 206 - - - 206 - 206
Total e 1,030 20,123 - 45 21,198 - 21,198
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there BE-_Z-—+tFR-_ZF-X<FE+=A
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors ET—HALZEER AEEHBERDES
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as XNHENERERBAEMALEER R
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived IO B 2 SR o B B 2 BEME o UEAh - B
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2017 and E_ELLFERCB-_AEF-_A=1+—
2016. AE2HER  BIEESRRTOME -
7 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 7 REFMNES

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2016:

four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note FoON)RE H# & 2 MM 6l

6. The emoluments in respect of the other one (2016: one) BE-BfTo2— U (ZFT—R"F: —1)EE
individual is as follows: ZEFHMEFBENT

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E-R¥F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREEFT

Salaries and other emoluments FERHMWE 4,985 4,925

Discretionary bonuses BE 2 fEAL - -

Share-based payments BUIR 0 7 B 2 - -

Retirement scheme contributions EBRESMHR - -

4,985 4,925
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

8 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the following data:

8 BREF (EHE)

(a)

BRENGR,(BE)

SRERRR, (BR) B THER
s

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to FARRFELZEE
equity shareholders of the Company =R () 179,040 (537,587)

The weighted average number of shares is calculated
based on the following data:

At 1 January and 31 December

BT BB HHE AT ERHE -

R—B—BRtT=A=t—H

2017
—2-tF

2016
—g-xk

Number of ordinary shares in issue BBTZ
EBERKRE
Number of Series A convertible BRI ZARTIARR
preference shares in issue BERREH

Number of Series B convertible

E#ITZBRI AR

11,019,072,390 | 11,019,072,390

1,518,807,075 | 1,518,807,075

preference shares in issue BEBRRE 3,897,110,334 | 3,897,110,334
Number of Series C convertible BT ZCRYITER

preference shares in issue BRBRERE 3,671,509,764 | 3,671,509,764
Number of Series D convertible BT ZDR R

preference shares in issue BRRBRE 2,211,382,609 | 2,211,382,609
Total Az 22,317,882,172 | 22,317,882,172

As set out in note 24(c), the holders of the convertible
preference shares are entitled to receive the same
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares or
convertible preference shares outstanding during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 is the same as the basic loss per share as there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares or convertible
preference shares outstanding during the year.

(b)

RIEHEE24(c) » ATRREXRFTEA
IERHEEBEREEARBERRE
ZHER] ©

BREEER(BE)

REBE-Z—tF+-A=t—HZ
FE  ARRQARFERILEEM
EBEEBENE 2 EBNTRREL
R AtEREEENESRENR
AMAERE o

RBE-Z-X"F+-A=+t—-A2
FE  ARAQARFERILEEM
BEEEBENE 2 EBY T RREL
B At SREEHERESRERES
BAERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

9 ME -FERKBREE

BE-Z-—tH5+-A=+-HLEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

T i
(a) BEEZYE

Interests in
leasehold
land held for
own use
Furniture, Stores under
Leasehold fixtures and Motor under operating
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
gEHEYL
G- %8 BRLH
BF  HEXE Rk RE  EBRZER Mt HERE ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost; HA:
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-f-H 234,324 1,746,934 653,224 31,256 18,391 2,684,129 201082 2,885,171
Exchange adjustments [ - - 168 366 - 533 - 533
Additions B - 1,646 29,206 1427 165,918 198,197 - 198,197
Transfer &y - 23,158 72,523 725 (96,406) - - -
Disposals HE - (28,355) (45,928) (7,019 - (81,302) - (81,302)
Disposal of two subsidiaries  HERZHERF - - 81) - - 81 - (1)
At 31 December 2016 W-B8-RETZA=1-A 234,324 1,743,383 709,112 26,754 87908 2,801,476 201042 3002518
At 1 January 2017 W-2-t5-f-A 234,34 1,743,383 709,12 26,754 87903 2,801,476 01042 3002518
Exchange adjustments B - - (174) (348) - (522) - (522)
Additions "B - 51,640 15,649 4,603 258,576 330,468 - 330,468
Transfer L1 - 98,039 145,394 1,453 (244,886) - - -
Disposals HE - (48,080) (56,416) (4182 - (108,628) - (108,628)
At 31 December 2017 W-F-tETZR=1-A 234,324 1,844,982 813,565 28,330 101598 3,022,794 1082 322383%
Accumulated depreciation  EiHFEREEEHS
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2016 RZ5-RE-F-H 111,606 681,177 214,870 14,589 - 102242 65,684 1,087,926
Exchange adjustments [ - - 168 30 - 470 - 470
Charge for the year EENED 11,405 95,501 75,455 3,295 - 185,656 6,204 191,950
Impairment losses (note 8 HERE (H3) - 63,940 10,077 - - 83,017 - 83,017
Written back on disposal ~ HEZ @ - (17,002) (27,704) (5,829) - (50,529) - (50,529)
Written back on disposal of  HEREHBAFZEHE
two subsidiaries - - (51) - - (51) - (1)
At 31 December 2016 WZF-RETZR=1-R 123,011 823,616 281815 12,363 - 1,240,805 7,978 1,312,783
At 1 January 2017 R-E-t£-f-F 123,011 823,616 281,815 12,363 - 1,240,805 71978 1,312,783
Exchange adjustments L - - (172) (307) - (479) - (479)
Charge for the year EERED 11,405 90,504 82,647 3,058 - 187,614 6,293 193,907
Written back on disposal ~ HEZEE - (39,837) (62,522) (3,232 - (95,591) - 95,591)
At 31 December 2017 W_F-tETZR=1-R 134,416 874,283 311,768 11,882 - 1,332,349 78,271 1,410,620
Net book value: Raf:
At 31 December 2017 W-B3-tETZA=1-8 99,908 970,699 501,797 16,448 101,593 1,690,445 122,171 1,813,216
At 31 December 2016 W-5-AETZA=1-R 11,313 919,767 421,297 14,391 87,903 1,560,671 129,064 1,689,735
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)
Impairment losses

No impairment losses of property, plant and equipment
were recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, due to a significant increase
in loss of certain stores, provision of impairment loss
amounting to RMB83,009,000 was recognised in other net
loss. In calculating these losses, the recoverable amounts
of the relevant assets were determined on the basis of
their value in use. The pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% used
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2016, as certain stores were closed
due to the redevelopment plan initiated by the landlords
for the sites where the stores were located, provision
of impairment loss amounting to RMB10,671,000 was
recognised in other net loss to write down the carrying
value to these assets to their net recoverable amounts,
which was determined based on their fair value less costs
of disposal.

The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:

9 WX FERKBREE
T3 (58)

(a) FRREMEZHIR(E)

T E R

BE-_Z—LtH+-_A=1+—HLHF
B AEELEBREANE  BE
KRB RERE -

RZIE-—RE+ZA=+—-H &
ETESoEBBEBEZEMN ARE
83,009,000t 2 HEEE 2 EE B
BRNREMEBEFER - RFTERSE
E5E > HEEEN TS SEEREE
FAEEMEE - BB EA13.5%
FNRBEGTSFLESEEEUC S
HEEERREELEENESEZRA
IZ;:%O

N-E—XE+-H=+—8 F
EHEETRIESEERAEZYE
MmER - HREEHEE ZREMERE
ZWEEEE  WHAEMEREEANE
FANR®10,671,0007T 2 FEEE -

(b) MEZIREETHMT :

2017 2016
—ZE—-+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®TT
In the PRC RAER
- medium-term leases —HHHEE 222,679 240,377
Representing: ZEIF
Buildings BgF 99,908 111,313
Interests in leasehold land held for EEHE AL
own use under operating leases HEER 122,771 129,064
222,679 240,377

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

(c) Assets held under finance leases

At 31 December 2017, the net book value of buildings held
under finance leases of the Group was RMB86,098,000
(2016: RMB94,945,000). The leases do not include
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC
and held under medium-term land use rights.

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

9 ME -EERRXRBREAE
T b ()

(c)

MEHERAZEE

R-ZZE—+F+=ZHA=+—H ' &&
EREEEEFCREEAARYE
86,098,000 T (ZE—RF : AR¥
94,945,0007t) ° WWHE I FBFEH
RIEE - BFNUNTE > WELHEL
Wi AEREE -

10 BILEE

2017 2016
=T—EF | =TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBT T
Cost: A

At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BER+=A=+—H 237,250 237,250

Accumulated amortisation/and 2 RBESSE

impairment losses:

At 1 January m—A—H 91,682 70,769
Charge for the year FERNER 8,113 10,250
Impairment losses (note 9(a)) WEEE (FE9a)) - 10,663
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 99,795 91,682
Net book value: BREE 137,455 145,568

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired
in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and 2012. The fair
value on the favourable lease interest was determined based
on a valuation report prepared by independent third party
valuers and comparison of the market rental rates at the dates
of acquisition and the estimated present value of payments
due under the lease contracts entered into by the acquired
subsidiaries. The intangible assets are amortised using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms which vary
from 10 to 30 years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution
and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Annual Report 2017 &£ #&

BIELEEHER-_ZZENER-ZT—ZFR
BB LR 22 EH S HEMEE -
BRMBEER AR ERBYE=H
EEREzEERSEHWER 2HERS
LB R FTWEEH B A R HES R EN
MEZAFEENEE BEEEUESR
EREGBTHED (H10E30F 1 5) #eH -

REACZHBEERVERGRBRERAZ
[BERAREBHA] -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 1% i &= MY RE
g

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(BRBSERBI UARBTREN)

11 GOODWILL 11 58
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Cost: AN
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HBHR+ZB=+—H 2,962,782 2,962,782
Accumulated impairment losses: 2 BEES
At 1 January B—B—H (308,530) (51,004)
Impairment losses REEE - (257,526)
At31December ~ Rt=A=t-HA | (308,530)] (308,530)
Carrying amount: BRMEIME :
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,654,252 2,654,252
Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill BEHBzHEEAENREAR
Goodwill is allocated to the following three groups of CGUs, BE2ORDRBEAEELERHSESR
identified according to region of operation of the Group: LT =@ARREEEEN:
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
East China Region ERME 2,526,847 2,526,847
South China Region EZEihE 124,007 124,007
North China Region FEib it E 3,398 3,398
2,654,252 2,654,252

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

11 GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of each of the above CGUs is
determined based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those relating
to the discount rate, long-term growth rates, and the expected
changes to gross margin and store operating and administrative
expenses. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
one-year period, which are extrapolated up to the following
ten years by using estimated growth rates of -0.1% to 3% per
annum (2016: -3.8% to 2.3% per annum) for the East China
Region and 4.0% to 5.0% per annum (2016: 4.7% to 5.0% per
annum) for the South China Region, respectively. The forecasts
are extrapolated beyond ten years based on estimated long-
term growth rates of 2.0% (2016: 2.0%) per annum. The growth
rates used do not exceed the long-term growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The pre-tax discount
rate of 13.5% (2016: 13.5%) used reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGUs. Changes in gross margin and store operating
and administrative expenses are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

No impairment losses of goodwill were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2017 as the recoverable amounts of the
respective CGUs so determined were higher than their carrying
amounts.

Impairment loss recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016 relates to the Group’s operations located in
the East China Region. As at 31 December 2016, the group of
CGUs in respect of the East China Region was reduced to its
recoverable amount of RMB2,526,847,000.
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FiiEEERNREELEMATINEHE S
STEENFERAEE EFEAEGEZEE
BERDEBE2HRE - REEREER - E£F
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tE—FHNKEE  ERERER
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(Z2—RE BF47%E5.0%) 2 b5t
BMEEMEREALTF - BBTEM
ERDEREHEEFE2.0% (ZE— K5
2.0%) WRHIE R RMHEE - Frik ArE
REATBHESCELENEITEN
R ER -FA B RE135% (=&
—RNEF 1 13.5%) RMIBAETSFERESE
EEVCccHEBEENRESELEENSEH
R ER  BELEHEEER®
FERNBAEARTBHER 2SR E -
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W ARMERIREEEENFIEE AW
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HE-F—tF+=A=T-BLEEBIARRN DARMTRER)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 B A A ER
UTHREBETBRHEFEEEE - &
EFREIAEEHBEQREL - REH
RT3 2 B M 2 B3R A 2 5] 2 i
BLAREHE c UThEIBRPERLZ

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The Group’s effective interest in the

entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The
entities below are all companies established in the PRC with

BREELQA -

limited liability.
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
AR LR ZfRREH AEBzBNER
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF Bt ZE-RE
% %
TRGAERERETERAF USD25,000,0003% 7t USD25,000,000% 7t 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ff&E1)
AZGNELEHENERAA RMB A K #19,000,0007t RMBAK#19,000,0007 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ki&E1)
BHANEREEETERAF USD5,000,000% 7t/ USD5,000,0003 7t/ 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD4,922,924% Tt USD4,922,924% 7t
(note 1) (HzE1)
EESGEREEETARAT USD6,500,000% 7t USD6,500,000% 7 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (F&E1)
ENZNEREEETERAA USD48,000,000% 7t USD48,000,000E 7t 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ki&E1)
WBZNETEHETRRAR USD12,000,000% 7. USD12,000,000% 7 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) (Ff&3)
BLTEEEER AR ERREBRAT RMBA K #3,000,00000  RMBAK#3,000,0007 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 1) (F#E1)
Development Co., Ltd.
EREEEHERRERAT RMBA K %29,500,0000 RMBA K#29,500,0007 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 1) (F#&1)
Development Co., Ltd.
HESNELEERTERAR USD180,000,000£7/  USD180,000,000% 7%/ 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD137,200,000% © USD137,200,000% 1t
(note 1) (Kfz¥1)
TERBENNOERAT RMB A K #25,000,0007t RMBA K#25,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 1) (FfE1)
TEREBRERLE RMB A K #10,000,0007t RMBA K#10,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Hf&¥4)
LEREBTARAF RMBA K #60,000,000c RMBA K*60,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (ff#4)
HEREETERAR RMB A K %500,000C RMBA K #500,0007 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (fii&4)
BLEEETERAT RMBA K #10,000,0007t RMBAK#10,000,0007T 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note-4) (HfEE4)

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12 B2 B ER (&)

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
AEER R HRA AEEZENER
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF% “E-RE ZE-tF ZE-RE
% %
LEREBTARAT RMBA K#13,500,00001  RMBAK#13,500,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (FE1)
TREERMARAT RMBA K #13,500,000t RMBAK#13,500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ki&E1)
LT NEBRERZAERAT RMBAK#8,949,000t RMBARK#8,949,0007T 100 100
Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (note 4,5) (4 - 5)
MNEBRLXERERAF USD16,800,000% USD16,800,000% 7T 100 100
C. P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (note 1,5) (HfE1 5)
LBERIAERAR RMBA K%1,000,000t  RMBAR¥1,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2,5) (K32 + 5)
EGEBEEEMERAT RMBA K #14,500,00070 RMBAK#14,500,0007T 100 100
Wuxi Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (FE1)
SREERTERLF RMBA K #14,500,000T RMBAR#14,500,0007T 100 100
Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (fE1)
RODEBTARAR RMB A K %14,500,000T  RMBARE#14,500,0007 100 100
Changsha Chulian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ff&1)
BMEEEHETERAA RMBA K %6,000,000t  RMBAR¥6,000,0007T 100 100
Xuzhou Yalian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 4) (fii&4)
I NEERBTERAT RMBA K #10,000,0007t RMBAK#10,000,0007T 100 100
Zhanjiang Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (HiEE4)
BN B BT ARAR RMBA R #3,000,0007T/ RMBAR#3,000,0007%/ 100 100
Guangzhou C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K #07t RMBAR®OTR
(note 4) (KizE4)
WELTRE NEERBHARAT RMBA R 20,000,007/ RMBAR#20,000,0007%/ 100 100
Shantou Jinping Dongxia C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., RMBA K¥07 RMBAR®OT
Ltd. (note 4) (KizF4)
WEHBRRL NEERBHARAT RMB A K #3,000,000%/ RMBAE%3,000,0007t/ 100 100
Shantou Chaoyang Mianbei C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., RMBA K %07t RMBAR®O01
Ltd (note 4) (Fff&E4)
BT NEERERTAR A RMB A R #10,000,00073/ RMBAE#10,000,0007%/ 100 100
Yangjiang C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd RMBA K#07t RMBAR®OT
(note 4) (Kizk4)
LED NS EESAERA T RMB A & #3,500,0007%/ - 100 -
Shantou C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. RMBAR¥07
(note 4,5) (Fff&t4 ~ 5)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

12 B2 B ER (&)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
AEER RS HRA AEEZENER
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF% “E-RF ZE-tF ZE-REF
% %
D NEBHARAF RMB A K #3,000,0007t/ - 100 -
Changsha C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K %07t
(note 4) (Ff&¥4)
AN NEBHERAT RMB A & %3,000,0007t/ - 100 -
Yongzhou C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K #07t
(note 4) (K &¥4)
BILTHIEE NEBE BT AR LA RMB A K #10,000,007t/ - 100 -
Foshan Shunde C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBA K ¥07
(note 4) (KizF4)
RA™ NEERERFARRLT RMBA & #700,0007%/ - 100 -
Changsha C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. RMBA R %07
(note 4,5) (Ffit4 ~ 5)
AR NEERBTAREELT RMB A & %10,000,0007%/ - 100 -
Xian C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. RMBAK¥07
(note 4) (Fi3¥4)
Notes: MEEE
(1)  These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises. (1) HERIFTBEBELE-

(2) The equity interests of this company are held by individual
nominees on behalf of the Company. This company is domestic
enterprise in the PRC legally owned by PRC nationals. Pursuant
to the various agreements in place between the Group and
the nominees, the Group operates the business owned by this
nominee company and in return is entitled to all the profit or loss
from the operation of this nominee company. As the Group bears
the risks and rewards of its operation of this nominee company,
the directors of the Company, after taking legal advice, consider
that the Group has effective control over this enterprise. Therefore
the financial results and positions of the enterprise have been
consolidated into the Group since its dates of establishment.

(3) This is a Sino-foreign joint venture established in the PRC.

(4) These are domestic enterprises in the PRC. Shantou C.P. Lotus
Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Changsha C.P. Supermarket
Co., Ltd., Yongzhou C.P. Supermarket Co., Ltd., Foshan
Shunde C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd., Changsha C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. and Xian C.P. Lotus
Supermarket Co., Ltd. are newly established in the PRC in 2017.

(5) C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd., Foshan C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Shantou C.P. Lotus
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. and Changsha C.P. Lotus
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. are engaged in.-the provision of
logistic, services. All-other companies_listed above are involved in
the operation of hypermarket stores. in' the PRC.

hRLABzBRAREHAZEREARED
AFA - LARMPEBARASEFEZ
FEA R - REAEEEREAD
NeETHE  AEBKERREQTE
BeEBRRALKESAEQAREEZME
EAREGE - ARAEEREREHLEE
RELARzEABRE RS  ARRESEE
BEERRE  RALEBEREREHRIZH
BRI Bt WEESBBEER
RREESEBZHIBHEERAEER -

WARARPBEBLZFIEERSE -

WEBNPE AR o WWEET NS
EERLEHREMRAT - RD MNEEHER
AT KM NEBHARAT  HILTIE
ERNEBERETEARAR  RAO™T NEE
CEBLEHARQABTRAZR NEERRBTH
?m%&&a%:ﬁ—t¢m¢ﬁ&ﬁz
AT

PR AR ERBROE  HAEEE
T2MEARREEERE - LIBERY
MERDE -~ FHLh NEEREEEAE
PRATE - LsE™ MNEEREREABBRD
ARRDT MEEEEEZRHERD AR
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C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE
o

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Pi=
13 78

13 INVENTORIES

All inventories as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are trading
merchandise. The analysis of the amount of inventories

MER-ZZE—tHFR-FE—X"F+ZA
=t HZGBFENAREESER BRAAEX

recognised as an expense is as follows: HeBFEHEIMMT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold ERFECREE 7,903,494 8,323,946
Write-down of inventories FEZRE 15,195 23,202
7,918,689 8,347,148

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 £ E R H M EWRIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Trade receivables B RN IE 80,333 86,498
Rental deposit HEZE 125,547 117,602
Value-added tax recoverable BERSIKIORE 114,908 137,940
Other debtors HibpguFE 62,514 59,817
Amounts due from related companies FEWEEEERIE

(note 29(b)) (FHiEE29(b)) 465,782 387,206
Derivative financial assets TTESRERE - 41,239
849,084 830,302

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental
deposits of the Group amounting to RMB125,547,000 (2016:
RMB117,602,000) are expected to be recovered within one
year. AU E o
Sales to retail customers are mainly made by cash or credit
cards. Credit terms of 30 to 90 days are offered to related
companies and corporate customers with ongoing relationship.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables due from third parties and related companies,
based on the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, if
earlier) and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

14 €ER HMBEWRE (&)

REE=ERMEALR 2 EERBREN
BRRBERZEBE  BEZAH (JUABA
BABH FHRE) REEHR KRR
DHWT :

2017 2016

—E—tE| ZB-XF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥TT

Within 30 days =tHRA 177,742 174,641
31 to 60 days =+—HZAXt+H 59,646 54,597
61 to 90 days AT—HBZATAH 58,942 50,928
Over 90 days (note) At Aa (M) 148,059 110,948
444,389 391,114

Note: Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the Group has received
RMB158,850,000 (2016: RMB89,300,000) trade receivables due
from related companies, of which RMB12,305,000 was included
in 61 to 90 days category and RMB146,545,000 was included in
over 90 days category in the above ageing analysis.

Included in the Group’s above trade receivables are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of RMB149,665,000 (2016:
RMB163,843,000) which are past due at the reporting date with
ageing analysis as follows:

M R=Z—tF+-A=+—H%  £&
ECWEARCE s ERKWRESA
R #158,850,0007T (= —RF : AR
#89,300,0007T) @ R EIEE L LR
BAONF AT —ZBN+ B ZREEIR
EA ARE12,305,000t BB AT A
ZIRER BRI IE B A R #146,545,000

JC °©

AEB LA EERKFECRECBEH
B ES L ARY149,665,0007T (=&
—NE : AR®163,843,0007T) @ Rik&E
AZREDWMUT :

2017 2016
—E—tE| ZB-XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥TT

Overdue wH
Within 30 days =tTHA 69,783 52,250
31 to 60 days =+—HZX+H 57,381 76,691
61 to 90 days At—HZEHATH 21,689 34,229
Over 90 days iyl A = 812 673
149,665 163,843

The directors consider no impairment provision is required in
respect of the above trade receivables as they are due from
either related companies controlled by the ultimate controlling
shareholder or counterparties that have a good track record
with the Group.

EEARETY LEBRWRIERER
EfE AUEBEDERRERRRE
BB ERELAEEA R FEELE
ZR 5T 2 BWFIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

15 S ARITER

BE-Z-—tH5+-A=+-HLEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEN)

15 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2017, RMB32,852,000 (2016: RMB46,174,000)
of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks as
guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for
payments to suppliers.

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In addition, at 31 December 2017, RMB27,013,000 (2016:
RMB13,371,000) of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged
to banks for the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of
certain subsidiaries.

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

RZEBE—+tFE+=ZA=+—H ' X&EEH
ZBITERAARYS2,852,000T (=&
—NEF  AR®46,174,000T) C KR T

RITEREEEENRMEBRITELE

EZER-

iy R=ZZE—tF+=ZA=+—H A
F#27,013,000t (ZZE—ARF: AR
13,371,0007t) 2 R EERTERE KT

TRTUAMETHB AR ZERELER

BB e

16 RERREEH

(@) RERREEHEE:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-XEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®BT T
Cash at bank and in hand and cash and  REGESHBMRRER 2
cash equivalents in the consolidated RITHEBERIREH
statement of financial position HeRkREELE 166,115 204,920
Bank overdrafts (note 18) RITHEX (MizE18) - (18,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REGEREREFRKZ
consolidated cash flow statement HehBEESE5 166,115 186,920

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to
RMB13,722,000 (2016: RMB12,543,000) are non-interest

bearing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(BRBSERBI UARBTREN)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 REeRREEHE(EA)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEEXEKELENEBHE
activities
Loans from Derivative
controlling Finance financial
Bank loans Other loans shareholder leases instrument Total
RITEX HtER ERRRER MEHE fTESMIA fag

RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARRTR AR®TR ARRTR ARET:R

At 1 January 2017 R-E-tE-A-H 204,900 46,446 971,877 153,784 (41,239) 1,335,768
Changes from financing BERLREESED

cash flows
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ HERTERZFE 329,549 - - - - 329,549
Repayment of bank loans RTERZER (304,503) - - - - (304,509)
Capital element of finance lease ~ XNEREHERS

rentals paid ZAEHH - - - (11,345) - (11,345)
Interest element of finance lease i BERERE

rentals paid 2HEBH - - S (14690) S (14690)
Other borrowing costs paid IEMERER (12,652) (1,268) (64,816) - - (78,736)
Loan arrangement fees amortised EXRZHE Az Hds - - (8,128) - - (8,128)
Cash paid on settlement of the ~ EESNEHEANLEER

forward foreign exchange fxfizie

contracts - - - - (22,355) (22,355)
Total changes from financing HERENE

cash flows 28985 12,394 (1268)  (72,944) (26035 (22355  (110.208)
Exchange adjustments ERLAE - (3,044) (58,868) - - (61,912)
Other changes: Hittgg

Finance charges on obligations ~ BEREEFREER

under finance leases (note 4(a)  (K4(a)) - - - 14,690 - 14,690
Interest expenses (note 4(a)) FIE (HrEE4(a) 10,268 1,268 64,816 - - 76,352
Loan arrangement and BENRURERER

guarantee fees (note 4(a)) (HE4(a) 1,889 - 8,128 - - 10,017
Interest on issuance of bank RTRLZATEZFE

accepted bills (note 4(al) (GEZE) 495 - - - - 495
Loss on the forward foreign EENERERNER

exchange contracts - - - 103,678 103,678

Total other changes Hu2eas 12,652 1,268 72,944 14,690 103,678 205,232
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=+-H 229946 43,402 913,009 142,439 40,084 1,368,880

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



BE-Z-—tH5+-A=+-HLEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEN)

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 € ERHMENRIE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETFT

Notes payable EERE 97,668 128,369

Trade creditors SB[ IE 2,209,069 2,374,897

Advance receipts from customers ?EH&EE%Z%’\IE 396,141 458,165

Construction costs payable TREEM 266,881 162,181

Other creditors and accrued charges HAEATE Iﬁﬁﬁgﬁgfﬁ 604,255 621,513
Amounts due to related companies FEEREEERRTE

(note 29(b)) (F=E29(b)) 171,903 140,419

Derivative financial liabilities rTETmes 40,084 -

3,786,001 3,885,544

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled ERHEMEMSKERIR -—FRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

within one year.

Advance receipts from customers represent the unutilised
balance of prepaid card sold by the Group.

The above balances with related parties are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,306,737,000 (2016:
RMB2,503,266,000) with the following ageing analysis, based
on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting period:

REDBAEEHERNE 2K

E%ﬁﬁo

LLEFA AR A T BB 2 HET R EIE
A TIHERRERERE -

AEBzEEREMENFERELERE
TRIEREANZE A RB2,306,737,0007T
(ZZB—RF: AE%2,503,266,0007‘E) ;
Eﬁ%&%%sﬁ,ﬁﬂz,ﬂﬁ‘éﬂm’%é’éa‘—‘ea,ﬁﬁﬂﬁpu

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR¥TT

Uninvoiced purchases REABECRE 877,391 1,008,634
Within 30 days =t+HR 1,073,575 1,149,138
31 to 60 days =t+—&x+H 180,619 98,280
61 to 90 days At—Zh+H 32,394 52,861
More than 90 days BEATH 142,758 194,353
2,306,737 2,503,266

At 31 December 2017, the Group had a USD non-delivered RZZ2—tF+=-A=+—H xEEHZ

forward foreign exchange contract with a notional amount of
UsSD139,770,000 (2016: USD139,770,000). At 31 December
2017, the fair value of the derivative financial liabilities in
respect of this forward exchange contract was RMB40,084,000
(2016: derivative financial assets of RMB41,239,000). The
forward foreign exchange contract has a maturity of less than
one year after the end of the reporting period, and the amount
is expected to be recovered within one year. The fair value of
the derivative financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period is-determined based on the valuation techniques
disclosed in note 25(e).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F—tF+-A=t-ALFE(RSERBN UARBTRERD)
18 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 18 MITERKREX

RZZB—tF+ZA=1T—8 AR
EXREXRERARR-FREE:

At 31 December 2017, all the bank loans and overdrafts are
unsecured and are repayable within one year:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥ET T

Bank loans RITER 229,946 204,900
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 18,000
229,946 222,900

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has drawn down bank
loans of RMB229,946,000 (2016: RMB204,900,000), bearing
interest at six-month rate of People’s Bank of China (“PBOC
Rate”) multiplied by 1.20, being 5.22% per annum (2016:
bearing interest at six to twelve-month PBOC Rate multiplied
by 1.10 to 1.13, being 4.35% to 4.92% per annum) or bearing
fixed interest at 4.70% to 5.22% per annum (2016: nil).

RZE—+tFE+=ZA=+—H &x&EEH
EREBITERARYE 229,946,000 T
—Z—RE: AR 204,900,000 7T) °
FANEZHENEEAHPEAAREBITRE([H
B ARBITIFRZE) FL 1.20 BFEFR
R B52%(ZEBE—RNEF: EMNRAEXRE
+TZEEFPBEARBITRERI 1.10
2113 BIFEFRZIR 4.35% & 4.92%) 5
BIEENMEBENT 4.70% & 5.22% (==
—REE) o

19 LOANS FROM CONTROLLING 19 EREZERRRER
SHAREHOLDER
At 31 December 2017, the Group has borrowed floating rate ;ﬁé;?@gﬁzﬂﬁﬁii—;l;g{% gi

loans of USD139,770,000 (equivalent to RMB913,009,000)
(2016: USD139,770,000 (equivalent to RMB971,877,000)) from
its controlling shareholder, CPH, bearing interest at three-
month LIBOR plus 4.50% to 5.65% per annum. The loans from
the controlling shareholder are unsecured and repayable in
December 2018.

A EEHA139,770,000E T (B
A AR %913,009,000t) (==& — X
% :139,770,000E T, (HER AR
971,877,0007t)) » =18 B mBR 1T
EIREMERNRLE0%ES.65%TE o It
ERRREFAZEARR=-ZE—N\HF
+ZBEH-

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

20 OTHER LOANS

21

20 Hfib &

At 31 December 2017, other loans were repayable as follows:

REZZB—tF+ZA=+—-0 H#ER

ZERHWOT
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Within 1 year —F R 43,402 _
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFER - 46,446
43,402 46,446

At 31 December 2017, third-party loans of USD6,656,000
(equivalent to RMB43,402,000) (2016: USD6,656,000
(equivalent to RMB46,446,000)) are unsecured and bear interest
at three-month LIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2016: 1.50%). The
other loans are repayable in December 2018.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

21

At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

RZE—+tE+ZA=+—H BAF
= 2 E7506,656,000E T (HERARE
43,402,0007t) (=& — X £ : 6,656,000
E ) (FHER AR146,446,0007T) I £
EH - R=ZEARBERTREZIFREMFER
F150% (ZF—RF 1 1.50%) o IkEE
ZHERR=ZE-NF+=AZH-

MEHESE

RZEBE—+tF+ZA=+—H  xEEZ
EAMEHESENT :

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE RIEHEE REHEE RIS
NRAE NRELE HHRE 25
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥ETR ARBTT ARBTT
Within 1 year —£R 12,909 26,405 11,345 26,035
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 14,243 26,405 12,909 26,405
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFER 54,495 81,258 48,626 80,450
After 5 years HEE 60,792 68,945 80,904 96,158
_________________________________________________________________ 129,530 176,608 | 142439 203,013
142,439 203,013 153,784 229,048
Less: Total future interest expenses i, | RIS 54848 (60,574) (75,264)
Present value of lease obligations HESEXZRE 142,439 153,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

Provisions have been made for the directors’ best estimate
of the expected costs associated with terminations benefits,
disputes with certain suppliers, cancellation of certain
store opening projects and store closures. Provisions are
summarised as follows:

22 & E

BELDESHABSNREHERE TH#
FERSRAA - HEEE THIIE R B KRB SR
MRS EHREE 277 - BE2R
BT

Termination Supplier

benefits claims Others Total

BRRILETHE HEBERE Ht Faby

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥ETRT AR¥ETRT ARET:R

At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE-~E-A—H - 1,101 - 1,101

Provision incurred BBvEE 44,640 6,148 7,933 58,721

Provision utilised RE2ER (30,177) - (1,576) (31,753)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—-RE

+=A=1+—-8 14,463 7,249 6,357 28,069

At 1 January 2017 RZE—t+t&—F—H 14,463 7,249 6,357 28,069

Provision incurred/(reversed) BEtEZEL (E1E) 7,086 2,393 (4,520) 4,959

Provision utilised BiE2ER (20,999) (2,214) (1,837) (25,050)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF

+=-A=1+-H 550 7,428 - 7,978

The provision balance at 31 December 2017 is expected to be

utilised within one year.

REZB—LF+ZA=+—-RHZBHERE
EHSR—FAEM -

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

Frig®i

23 REMBRRBRAZ

(a) HEMBRRBERAZNHBIAT

2017 2016

—E—tF| —B—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBT T

Balance at the beginning of the year FEBRUER 17,823 20,402
(Over)/under-provision in AFE(BE) S

respect of prior years RERERE (5,767) 4,560

Provision for PRC income tax for the year £ b B FriS i B 1% 53,657 28,097

PRC income tax paid 2P EBIE (38,476) (35,236)

27,237 17,823

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

23 REMBMRRNBRAZ
Frig®i (&)

(b) ERRBZELEHRBREERERE

RENEBRINGS B BRRER 2
EEBHEE (BE) 2BEHH

position and the movements during the year are as follows: REESNT :
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own use
Property, under
plant and operating Intangible
Tax losses equipment leases assets Others Total
EEREY
ERNA ARt
HEER FEL ek Bl EE it 45
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETn  ARMTrn  ARETR  ARETn  ARETx
Deferred tax arising from: BRREELR:
At 1 January 2016 RZE-RE-f-H 16,469 5115 (9,359) (41,620) 18,432 (10,963)
(Charged)/credited to profitor ~ (5I%) /5t AZEH
loss (note 5(a)) (Hi3E5(a)) (840) (407) 942 5,228 4,845 9,768
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
TZB=1-H 15,629 4,708 (8,417) (36,392) 28,217 (1,195)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-f-H 15,629 4,708 (8,417) (36,392) 28,211 (1,195)
(Charged)/credited to profit or (5I%) /3t AEEH
loss (note 5(a)) (H5E5(a)) (1,270) (382) 942 2,030 358 1,678
At 31 December 2017 RIE-tE
tZB=1-H 14,359 4,326 (7,475) (34,362) 23,635 483
An analysis of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities is BIEREEEREBSREZ2ONMUT :
set out as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®T T
Net deferred tax assets EIER I E E R 5 34,972 35,647
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIEEEFEE (34,489) (36,842)
483 (1,195)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the items below as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which these items can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

23 REMBMRRNBRAZ
Frig®i ()

(c) RERZELERBREE

L3R B ARRE 2R R B E A B i
AER - BR AT REESHENE R
EREER ST ARKHE EMRER K
RERBL Z IR o

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Tax losses HIAEE 625,582 751,692
Deductible temporary differences KN R ERE 222,488 277,623
848,070 1,029,315

Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not
expire, the tax losses of its subsidiaries established in the
mainland China can be carried forward up to five years
from the year in which the loss originated, and will expire
in the following years:

BRARBZHBEBRLIBIBAN - HIE
FBEARBEELEFERBZURAFAMRE
Ao ERTHFHRE

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBT T

2017 —E—+F - 160,147
2018 —EB-NE 180,456 97,052
2019 —Z2-hEF 123,700 161,184
2020 —EEF 116,677 116,677
2021 —E-—F 63,646 185,555
2022 = 89,246 -
573,725 720,615

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-EZ—tF+-A=+-HLEFE(RBSAEHRBI UARBTREN)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movement in components of equity

(b)

24 BA& - ERRE
(a) MEBABHZ2D

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

REB 2 REERNESEARE DK
MY R R A BR 2 B AV FAES - BRAR
ERBZHHR - AQNBZEHENE
BAXRSBT FNEFR2EBFER
I

Share Exchange Retained

premium reserve earnings Total

R 1D %E & 5 e RERF ok

(Note (d)) (Note (d)) (Note (b))

(FiEE(d) (FIEE(d)) (HizE(b)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR%®TR AR%Tx

At 1 January 2016 WZZE-R"F-B—H 1,933,161 (146,109) 88,797 1,875,849
Profit for the year FERF - - 73,151 73,151
Other comprehensive income  EAti2EKE - 154,160 - 154,160
Total comprehensive income EE2EKGAE
orthe year N 154160 . [EACI 227,311
At31December2016 ~~ M=F-AET-A=F-RA 1938161 801 .. 161,948 2,103,160
At 1 January 2017 R-B-t&E—B—H 1,933,161 8,051 161,048 2,103,160
Loss for the year EEFR - - (113,946) (113,946)
Other comprehensive income ~ HftZ2E & - (160,638) - (160,638)
Total comprehensive income FEXANGHLE
ortheyear ... (160638)  (113,946)  (274,584)
At 31 December 2017 R-E-+t&+=ZA=+—H 1,933,161 (152,587) 48,002 1,828,576
Dividends (b) BE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Authorised and issued share capital

24 BA& - RERKRE ()

() ZEREBEITRE
2017 and 2016
—E-tFR=F-AF

No. of shares

R
('000) HK$’000
(F) FExT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at par value of BREHE.02ETZERER
HK$0.02 each 34,000,000 680,000
Series A convertible preference BRE{E.02B T2
shares at par value of HK$0.02 each AR A IRE LR 2,000,000 40,000
Series B convertible preference SRMEE0.02/8 T2
shares at par value of HK$0.02 each BZR I AJ#2 IR 18 £ IR 4,000,000 80,000
Series C convertible preference ERME.02/8 T2
shares at par value of HK$0.02 each CZ5IA[#ERE LR 4,500,000 90,000
Series D convertible preference SRMEE0.02/8 T2
shares at par value of HK$0.02 each DZ 5 A2 RE £ IR 2,500,000 50,000
2017 and 2016
SELERCB-AF
No. of shares
IR
('000) RMB’000
(F) ARBT T
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares EiER 11,019,072 215,159
Convertible preference shares AR B SR 11,298,810 190,567
22,317,882 405,726

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the total convertible
preference shares in issue include 1,518,807,075 Series
A convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B
convertible preference shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C
convertible preference sharesrand 2,211,382,609 Series D
convertible preference shares, respectively.

EEREEAZRURRAREIRRE
ZEARRARTARRAEEEER
—REE - MAEBEREARFAZR
BREEZAREFMAL

//
|||

I
+ + > B
Ti@ﬂﬁ@?ﬁﬂﬁ?@%&ﬁﬂﬂ@
1,518,807,075}§£A% HI A B ARE L
B% > 3,897,110,334RBZ 5| A1 JR {2
5 8% ~3,671,509,7648C% 5| 7]
RIE % Ik &2,211,382,6098%D% I
AR RE LR
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24 A~ EERRE (&)

BE-Z-—tH5+-A=+-HLEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEN)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In
addition, the holders of these shares have the right to
convert any preference share into the Company’s ordinary
shares at any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1
to 1 each subject to the minimum public float requirement
as set out under the Listing Rules being maintained.

(c)

EERBBITRA (8)

FEARREERDAZERERE
ZBRM o WERDZIHBEAZHES
BREFE AWEERRES ZEFR o it
o EERM 2FB AT ZEMEM
R DL R E S 1 S Ot R (T
AEERA/ARDEEBR ZEF (B
ANSELTRAALFREIRISTRE
ZHRE - AREBEZRABRIABRNE TR
H SRR QR BITH R T RRER

(d)

Adjustments to the conversion price are only made upon
dilutive and other events which are related to the Company
issuing new shares or convertible debts.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(i)  Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the difference
between the Group’s share of the fair value of the
associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest
in associate at the date the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside the PRC. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(w).
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was HK$2,226,537,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,828,576,000) (2016: HK$2,358,326,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,103,160,000)) as computed in accordance with
the Company Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity holder’s return that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. The Group also monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio which is calculated by
dividing loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans,
overdraft and other loans by total equity.

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk in respect of trade receivables is limited as the
balances mainly arise from credit card sales. Credit terms
of 30 to 90 days are offered to corporate customers with
ongoing relationship. The Group grants 90 days to WSL
and its related entities for store merchandise sales to
them.

24 BA -~ EERKRE ()
(e) BEMEZDIEY

f

RZZE—+tHF+ZA=+—H R
BEHEHECRATETE itz
AHIKFALATABRRZ2EES
2,226,537,000/8 T ((HEE R AR
1,828,576,0007t) (=& — < F :
2,358,326,000/8 7t (fHER AR
2,103,160,0007%T)) ©

EXER

FEBRERERZBNIRBARE
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AEEREEBEREHHEREBETR
AMEE  LEBRSREREHRBERT
B zaSEEKFEEBRENE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As set out in note 29(b), the Group had receivables due
from WSL and its related entities and other subsidiaries
and associates of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited (“CPG”), the ultimate holding company, amounting
to approximately RMB465.8 million (2016: RMB387.2
million) as at 31 December 2017, which represents
approximately 54.9% (2016: 46.6%) of the Group’s total
trade and other receivables. Given CPG is the Company’s
ultimate holding company, the directors consider that
these amounts are fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other receivables.
Cash and deposits are placed with banks which the
directors consider have sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations and
committed future capital expenditures as and when they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,796.6 million (2016:
RMB1,825.0 million).

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2018, which was
prepared based on historical cash requirements of the
Group which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of
the opinion that the assumptions which are included in the
cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject
to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of
these assumptions may not be realised.

Based on the cash flow forecast prepared and the letter
of support provided by the controlling shareholder
(note 1(b)) the directors have determined that adequate
liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital
expenditure requirements of the Group for the forthcoming
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and

B 5 R R B R

e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

25 sREREER A AEE)

excluding the impact of netting agreements:

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)

REBEEERE(E)

UTHEMEEsRNWAR - B4
ARENRRMEREE R 2R

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ENFERRER
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor lessthan  lessthan More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-ERy  -ERE  WERE
R MER LER nE% g REE
RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR AR¥Tn AR%TR ARETr AR%T:n
31 December 2017 “E2-tE+Zh=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ ATz SMEE
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERREY (238,502) - - - (238502 229,946
Loans from controlling shareholder ~ BRERREER (976,064) - - - (976,064) 913,009
Other loans HtER (44,582) - - - (44582 43,402
Notes payable, creditors and EAZE  BAFERES
accrued charges ANER (3,574,014) - - - (3,574,014 3,574,014
Amounts due to related companies ~ EfRELEFE (171,903) - - - (171,903 171,903
Obligations under finance leases BERESHT (26,405) (26,405) (81,258) (68,945)  (203,013) 142,439
(5,031,470) (26405 (81,258  (68.945) (5208,078) 5,074,713
Derivative financial liabilities fTEIAVERAR
Derivative financial liabilities fTEIEZSRER (40,084) - - - (40,084) 40,084
(5071554 (26405  (81,258)  (68,045) (5,:248,162) 5,114,797
31 December 2016 ZE-AEtZR=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ ¥4 TAvSRERE
Bank loans and overdrafts BIETRES (230,550) - - - (230550) 222,900
Loans from controlling shareholder ~ FE{TERIERE (58,575)  (1,036,233) - - (1,004,808) 971,877
Other loans HipEz (1153)  (47,331) - - 8d8d) 46,446
Notes payable, creditors and BREE  EAFEREM
accrued charges ANER (3,745,125) - - - (3745,125) 3,745,125
Amounts due to related companies  EftRELEE (140,419) - - - (140419) 140,419
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEBEEM (26035  (26405)  (80.450)  (96.158) (220,048 15378
(6201857 (1,100.969)  (80.450)  (96,156) (5488,434) 5,280,551
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

25 sEiEREERAAE(E)

(c) F=mEp

(i) Interest rate profile () FEH#L
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates AEBAECZFREBERE =
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash ZRFAEE2RERRES
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans and - CEREZRITER RITE
overdrafts, loans from controlling shareholder, other MEREX  EFERRREN
loans, and obligations under finance leases. HERRREHRESE -
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAVNAREBRBEBRR 2B
the Group’s net borrowings (interest-bearing liabilities B35 (e 8 EHRM S K
less interest-bearing financial investments excluding RE (MBRIEREHEEESR
cash held for short-term working capital purposes) at WATEE 2B E)) ZFIZERR -
the end of the reporting period.
2017 2016
b 22 —E-RF
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
BRFAE RHE BHFIE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETTR ARET R
Variable rate instruments: FEFERIA :
Pledged bank deposits BEBZRTER 0.50% 59,865 0.42% 59,545
Cash and cash equivalents HE&RELEE 0.28% 152,393 0.23% 192,377
Bank loans and overdrafts ~ SR{TERNEX 5.22% (69,946) [4.35% - 4.92% (222,900)
Loans from controlling ERERERER
shareholder 6.02% (913,009) 6.02% (971,877)
Other loans HtnEH 2.50% (43,402) 2.50% (46,446)
(814,099) (989,301)
Fixed rate instruments: EEFEIA:
Bank loans and overdrafts ~ $B{TEHREX 4.70% - 5.22% (160,000) - -
Obligations under finance MEHEERE
leases 9.8% - 10.03% (142,439) |9.8% - 10.03% (153,784)
(302,439) (153,784)
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BE-F—tF+-A=t-ALFE(RSERBN UARBTRERD)
25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 25 SREREER A AE(E)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) FZ=mEp ()

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SBEDH

R-ZE—+tF+ZA=+—8 >
AT ERZ100EE L 2T (H
T E & EEEIETTE) 5L
mn/ BAOARER 2 EEFERR

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a change
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s net loss and retained profits by the amounts

shown below: BENEEOT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Variable rate instrument: FEFEIA

100 basis point increase B H1100{EE 2 6,106 9,893
100 basis point decrease A 1001EE (6,106) (9,893)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.

(d) Currency risk

The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations
are all based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to
significant currency risk in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from bank
loans and loans from controlling shareholder held by
certain PRC subsidiaries, which are denominated in USD.
At 31 December 2017, the relevant loans amounted to
usSb120,170,000 (2016: USD120,170,000). The Group
used a forward exchange contract to economically hedge
the currency risk of the above loans. Changes in the fair
value of the forward exchange contract are recognised
in profit or loss. At 31 December 2017, the fair value of
the derivative financial liabilities in respect of the forward
exchange contract was RMB40,084,000 (2016: derivative
financial assets of RMB41,239,000). The forward exchange
contract has maturity of less than one year after the end of
the reporting period.

PAE 2 R E D T RR A R R
HHE2ENNERCHFEZER
TARANZEAR sHE-F
—RNEZEERR -

(d) SMERBS

ESARAEETEER LR
FE ARERETEEBHREEX
SN LB

AEBZHERBRFIEREE TS
BB ARIUETAEEE N ZR
TEZMESERBRERER RN
E—tF+=ZBA=+—H HBE=Z
B 5120,170,000E T (=& — 7~
£ :120,170,000E 7T) - AEEFE A
—IBHNE R B S A A ¥ o Bt
BERZIERR - INEREHNAR
EzesEaAnEsh R-ZE—+
F+ZA=1+—H0  IERBEIN
TESREBNAARTFEAARYE
40,084,000t (ZE—RF T <
mMEES ARY41,239,0007T) ° Ut
IEERHEORBEHRREREIN
—FRFHE -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 25 cRIAKREER AAME(E)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ShERBE (&)
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC ARBAWFEREREE R PEEMT
government may at its discretion restrict access to NARRRZEREIREGTRZ U
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the WET - MEERESRG2RER
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system hRAEEREEMIINEERKRAE
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign B REEEERRAMERERE -

currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.

(e) Fair value measurement (e) 2AEZEE
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value () BAARENEZLHEERERE
At 31 December 2017, the Group has certain R-EBE—tFE+=—HA=+—H"
derivative financial instruments - exchange forward AEBzETTESHMIE -
contract, which is measured at fair value. When ERHEY  LUARBEE - B
measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the FE-HEER—HAGHN AR
Group uses market observable data as far as possible. B REBEEURERATSA
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a BRWEE - DAERREBUT
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the EEFENERERBZ>AT
valuation technique as follows: EE:$ 8
Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets - HAESTEREHEREE
for identical assets or liabilities at the HEERTRHE L
measurement date RECFAEORE -
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in . BREESHRE—FRE
level 1 that are observable for the assets or Sh o H A B 3 (BB
liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or %) s (AEEE
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) BE)IBENEE
EEREBENER -
Level 3: significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable F=ZH BERTUBENER
inputs are inputs for which market data are THEBENER BEE
not available. BEENHEHE -
The fair value measurement of the forward exchange AZE—+E+ZB=+—H 4
contract as at 31 December 2017 is categorised into ERSN 2 AR ETERED S
Level 2 fair value measurement and is determined FoRAREE  RHEEESE
by discounting the contractual forward price and IRARSMNEEAS - WINFRETIRITIZ
deducting the forward rate as at 31 December 2017 HA—ZE—+FE+"A=1+—HW
offered by issuance bank. The Group did not hold RHIMNEBRMEE - R=Z—+t
any other financial assets and liabilities carried at fair EN_ZE-RE+ZA=+—H>
vaiue as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. AEBWREMIZA REHRZS
REEREE-
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (i) HHFARETEZEHEERE
other than fair value =AY ]
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets RE-B—tEFER=-F—RET=
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are B=1t—H XEBzEmEE
not materially different from their fair value as at 31 FEBEMARIESREA A AR Z
December 2017 and 2016. IREEEANABELESAESR
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, BE_Z—+tFR-_F—RF
there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or +ZA=+—HIEZEFEER ¥
transfer into or out of level 3. BE—RNEFE_FHoBNER
REARBHE=
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F—tF+-A=t-ALFE(RSERBN UARBTRERD)
26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26 £ EHE 2 AL

As lessee BAEHEA

At 31 December 2017, total future minimum lease payments 73"_ —+FE+=ZHA=1+—H ' FaHH

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: ERE R RREEERSHIELEE

ZZDT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBT T
Within 1 year —FR 632,684 592,203
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREIZFRA 514,617 459,875
After 5 years EEE 6,020 9,637
1,153,321 1,061,715

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
and store premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period up to 20 years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 1 to 7 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The store leases typically provide the Group with the ability
to cancel the leases within the lease period on payment of a
penalty and/or after a minimum period of leasing.

As lessor

Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the
year amounted to approximately RMB522,828,000 (2016:
RMB481,154,000).

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

AEBEDETHARRIERE 2 EEM
EEBEA - HE-RNBBTEE_+
FOURBAERMERAKEERER
He HENRBES -—ZELFHBMUARR
mISEBMRR - LEEERERFRAE
- EHEEREEASEREEHAN
ENERR, IRREREHETEIUEHE
E o

AHEA

RER AEBzHEWEHRSKA
F?ﬂﬂ‘"%ﬂiﬂ*&%i?ﬁ HNBEBARE
522,828,000 (= REARE

481,154,0007T) °

EA_ —tF+=ZA=+—H  FTHEUH
BEHEz R RREEBWAERIRAE
ZZIJT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR®TT

Within 1 year —FR 257,874 183,760
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 288,991 216,267
After 5 years hFER 58,716 51,026
605,581 451,053
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26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

As lessor (Continued)

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 2
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the tenants have commitments to pay
additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain sub-
leased properties if the turnover generated from those sub-
leased properties exceeds the predetermined levels. Contingent
rentals are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

26

27

LEMRE 2 &K (&)

RHBA (H&)

HE-ReORBR=BRAZEME IR
BERMERREEEEEEHE KR
REREHRENHRN ET2EMEE
HEACEEEBBRE 2KFE  EP
AHEZEXR 2R THOHNEII A
T HRARBEFMEABARNESHE UL
ZEELRBELRES -

BEAREE

RZZB—tF+ZA=+—8 RESH
BHRRERBBEZERRENT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tE —E—RE

RMB’OO_O RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Contracted for EHE 17,581 8,766
Authorised but not contracted for EHLUEEBRETH 740,304 832,632
757,885 841,398

All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation
work on existing stores.

28 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the
employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month per employee. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several
defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by PRC municipal governments in regions where the major
operations of the Group are located. The Group is required
to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 13%
to 20% (2016: 13% to 20%) of salary costs including certain
allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled
to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
at the retirement date. The retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired staff of the Group are assumed by
these schemes.

Annual Report 2017 &£ #&

FHREER AL BRI ARE T R
REBEMZBHMIREMR -

28 BEERKER

AEEZHRBZRERESHBFIELES
(MaEEsrdl]))  —ERBLETAEE
ZHREE - RIBBE ST ERA - A%
BErREESASREERWA Z5%H 5
EHF BEEHRBELEREES B1,500
B AEEBRETE 2 E-SET
BB REMHRK -

AEEETEZEESHERNEEIELE
e APERBERFSREEZE TR
REHEHE - AEEFTAUEHERGE
A (B¥EE TR #1313%£20% (=
T—RF 1 13%F20%) ZHK o BIKE
EREZHNRMNE UEFH 2 B E 7
ERRKEAR - REBEZEBIEFTEET
HEMERAERRIEMKES ZRIKBER

BfE-



29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
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Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-—tH5+-A=+-HEFE(BRBEHBN AARBTHEN)

TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to obtaining loans from controlling shareholder (a)
in 2016 as disclosed in note 19, the Group entered into the

following material transactions with entities controlled by,

or related to, the ultimate holding company, CPG, during

the year.

20 EXMHBEALZRS

BRIEE19FTIRE R — T — NEFEWMGE
BER2ERN  AEBERERNER
RAER D RCPGES, MHEZ %
ZERRZUT »

Continuing related party transactions BEEBATZRZ (M)

(note (i)
Store merchandise sold to WSL and its HEEHE R TWSLK EAAE
related entities 1o

Store merchandise purchased from High £R 08 15 487 @ B High Orient

Orient Enterprises Limited (‘HOEL”) and Enterprises Limited ([ HOEL J)

its related entities REBBEE
Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial HEWABEATEREME
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. EEBBERAR(TEXEED
(“CTCREM”) and its subsidiary REKE AR
Rental expenses to HEXHIZAF
- Shanghai Kinghill Limited (“SKL”) - LEFRBERERLE
(=)
- Anhui Zhengtong Enterprise Co., Ltd. - ZREWNBEEBRAR
- Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. -BLE¥BREMBERRAA
- Shantou Xinping Investment Consultation — UM EFREZEH
Co., Ltd. BRAF
Master trademark fee paid to CPG ITHEEAZIFCPG
Logistic services income from CPG and #3% BR ¥ W A ECPGR
its related entities HiEBE %
Other related party transactions (note (i) HEMMHEBEA L 25 (KiE(i)
Interest expenses charged by CPH CPHI B2 FIEER
Reimbursement of staff costs (note (iii)) EERAERE (M)
Allocation of administrative expenses at THERUR RS B FWSLE
cost to WSL and its related entities HAREE 1 2 (B &E (i)

(note (iii))
Guarantee fee payable to Zheng Xin Bank  ERERAZ A FIEERIT
Co., Ltd. BRAF

2017 2016
ZB-LEF | CB-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE | ARMTR
653,577 749,107
81,637 69,995
7,195 7,337
18,000 18,000

- 2,096

7,808 7,938
14,999 14,880
1,119 962
1,773 999
64,816 -
15,207 13,671
2,893 6,138

600 625
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()

(Continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(iii)

These related party transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. In addition, master trademark fee paid to
CPG and logistic services income from CPG and its related
entities are exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the listing rules. Since 27 January 2016, the
store merchandise sold to WSL and its related entities is
no longer continuing connected transactions, as the share-
holding structure of CPG changed on 26 January 2016.
The store merchandise sold to WSL and its related entities
during the period from 1 January 2016 to 26 January 2016
(inclusive) was RMB130,955,824.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The employment contracts of certain individuals who
previously worked for the Group but now work for WSL
and its related entities on a full-time basis remained with
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals were
reimbursed by WSL and its related entities to the Group.
Total staff costs disclosed in note 4(b) are stated net of such
reimbursement.

Further, following the organisation restructuring in 2013, the
Group shares certain administrative services with WSL and
its related entities. The Group charges the costs applicable
to WSL and its related entities on a cost basis.
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following balances with related (b)
companies:

In addition to the loans from controlling shareholder
disclosed in note 19, the Group had other balances due
with related companies as follows.

20 EAMHBALZRES (&)

AEBEMABLEZEROT

BREEE19FTINE 2 B IR RER
o AEBREMBECE &N
T

2017 2016
=E-EF | ZTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T

Due from related companies FEU BB ¥ 8
— WSL and its related entities —WSLKk EHEE 463,165 384,788
- HOEL and its related entities —HOELK HHRE % 345 208
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —EXEERHENEBATR 2,272 2,210
465,782 387,206

Due to related companies EAEESERE
- CPG —CPG 1,082 1,005
— WSL and its related entities —WSLK HABRE % 99,109 80,172
— HOEL and its related entities —HOELK EiRRE{b % 13,157 16,482
— SKL and its subsidiaries -t EERRENBLAT 58,434 42,571
— Other related companies —Hib AR 121 189
171,903 140,419

Key management personnel remuneration (c) X EEBAESMS

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 6, is as follows:

AEBFEEBAB S » BFEK
FOWECEZNFARATNEEZEE
mT

2017 2016

—B-tF | ZE2-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Short-term employee benefits EHESREA 23,606 26,077
Post-employment benefits ZERIAZER 32 46
Termination benefits BRI IETHE - -
Equity compensation benefits ERRERF - -
23,638 26,123

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
4(b)).

WERBEREREERA | (RHEE
4(b)) A °
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30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

30 A& 1 B B B AR L &

31 December | 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
+=A +=A
=t+—H =t+—AH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ EERSZE 530 694
Interests in subsidiaries KB~ B R 2,278,770 2,416,371
Other long-term prepayments HttRHBENER - 1,333
2,279,300 2,418,398
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables EEREMEREE 207,088 321,324
Cash and cash equivalents HeRhBEEEE 16,500 12,764
223,588 334,088
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables EENEMENIE 124,565 89,479
Other loans HERR 16,227 17,365
Loans from controlling shareholder FEERRRER 127,794 -
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 268,586 | 106,844
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (BB EEFH (44,998) 227,244
Total assets less current liabilities ®ZEERATER 2,234,302 2,645,642
Non-current liability FREBEE
Loans from controlling shareholder FE R IR R E R - 136,756
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ -|.... . 136,756
NET ASSETS BEEFH 2,234,302 2,508,886
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital [ %N 24(c) 405,726 405,726
Reserves & 24(a) 1,828,576 2,103,160
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,234,302 2,508,886
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RIE-NFZA-+=ZHEESZIE
23 February 2018. NIRRT -
Soopakij Chearavanont Umroong Sanphasitvong
#HEA Director
Director EFE
EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z—tF+-A=+-HLFE (RBSERBI UARBTREN)

31 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANIES

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
the ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements
available for public use.

32 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. Notes 9, 10 and 11 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and goodwill. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(a) Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,796.6 million. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements using
a going concern basis. Further details are set out in
notes 1(b) and 25(b). Should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern, all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities would have to be stated at net realisable
value. In particular, the non-current assets and the non-
current liabilities would have to be reclassified as current
assets and current liabilities respectively and provision for
contingent liabilities may be required as a result.
(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of the
assets and their residual values, if any. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation-expense for future periods is
adjusted if there jare significant, changes from previous
estimates.

31

32

EERBRERAT

R-ZZE—tF+ZA=+—H EER
ARARNAcHEEERATARIEBE#
BMREBFMMAZC.P. Holding (BVI)
Investment Company Limited @ & & #
R DT AR B &ML ZCharoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited ° it
iﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%kiﬁﬁﬂzﬁﬁﬁ

EERERe ] |

At R A E RIS ETME  UREBEL
BRHEMEEZET BEEEEERITYH
RREHEARAEE - EERGZESH
BHRE FZEcREZEEEESITH
RRE FEZEHRERZHABRE
REAEE  RRELEREEGERBR
BECBRBE - M9 10R11EEEEE
WE EERRE BEFEELEHEEE
FEzBRRESERBEZ2ER - &
A THEPAEEZCETERRNT -

(a) HELE

KRB ZEBSYHAEBZRRAREE
& (BERAEE2RBEEFEFENIA
R 2 796,600,0007T) B 1 H{F4E
B BEERAUSBELCEEERRI
BHERBEE - E—FHBENHE
1(b) & 25(b) o e A~ & B M A R B 1518
we AEBCBEEEREBER
B REEYR AHRFERBEE
RERBEBEINESEERDERE
gﬁ@ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
EfE-

(b) W% FERREBINE

ME FBERRBETRMAFERE
® o BAESTEAFHRUERERE -
FEEEFENEE 2 A ERAFHY
RESE (NF) - ERFHREA
SEHBEUEEZBEIEREE - fd
BEMGTHREAEER  RARHH
ZATERXE FURAE -
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32 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land, goodwill
and other non-current assets may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts
of these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, except for goodwill which is tested annually
for impairment. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate selling prices because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and amount of operating costs.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2017, the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses carried forward
of certain PRC subsidiaries, as set out in note 23(b). The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised. In
assessing the need to recognise a deferred tax asset,
management considers all available evidence, including
projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies,
historical taxable income, and the expiration period of the
losses carried forward. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits are less than expected, a reversal of a
deferred tax asset may arise, which will be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes
place.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, SBEHEMAEEARBE-Z
NEW STANDARDS AND —tF+ZA=1+—HLH#F
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EEM2IEE > FHERRZ
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED Eoagee
31 DECEMBER 2017

BEHRARBRAZABAL B
EHHAREMGIAB  HAAR

REHMANEZ-F—tF+=A
I i v AR
PR o H b 03 ] LB S AR 2 ML
TRE -

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

REARRRRARER

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BB RELERFESE  2H T A 1 January 2018 —E-\§¥-A-H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers & BHBREERFE155  FFA 1 January 2018 —E-N\¥-A-H
4.2 Wi
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: ~ BB BHREERE2E  KF L 1 January 2018 —E2-N\E-A-H
Classification and measurement of 1 BROZHNXZH 7 E R E
Share-based payment transactions
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and 58 (ERMBRERBEES)R 1 January 2018 “ZE-N\¥-A—-H
advance consideration BE2% NEXEREBNIE
HKFRS 16, Leases BEEMBREERE6S HE 1 January 2019 —E-NE-A-H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax B8 (ERMBRERBEES)R 1 January 2019 “E-1%-A-H
treatments %%%235)% FEREENTHRE
1%

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

REBEEFELEETT HER2E
REXERPEzEZE - 2SEAEEER
EFERERLSEREHGFS P BHE
EEBARE -AHENFEE—FHF
BRT R - AT BYBIRELEAE
SRR BEBMBHEEREI1GHE 2FMEE
REZEH » BRESBIE TR EER
REBFRENEER  ROKRMLEZEDN
BREETRSAMTRE - X HEERE
ARAEBBE-_Z-N\FxA=tHL
ANER P H IR T RERIRE D
FE - AEBEBUTURERFHIHEEKE
B BEBERE EERSENDRE
BISERRAEA o
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.

The Group plans to adopt HKFRS 15 initially on 1 January,
2018 by using the cumulative effect transition method. Based
on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified
the following areas which could potentially be affected:

i. revenue from services - the application of HKFRS 15
may result in the identification of separate performance
obligations which could affect the timing of the recognition
of revenue;

ii. rights of return - HKFRS 15 requires separate presentation
on the statement of financial position of an estimate of the
amount of revenue that the entity expects to refund (the
refund liability) and an asset that represents the right to
recover the goods from the customer on settling the refund
liability; and

iii. revenue from goods - HKFRS 15 requires the Group to
determine whether it is a principal or an agent based on
whether it controls the specific goods before transferring
them to the end customer, rather than whether it has
exposure to significant risks and rewards associated
with the sale of goods. This may require revenue earned
under certain arrangements in cooperation with suppliers
to be recognised on a net basis but will have no impact
on the statement of financial position or net profit of the
respective reporting periods.

Based on the transaction entered by the Group to date, the
Group does not expect the application of HKFRS 15 to result in
any significant impact on the consolidated financial statement
of the Group.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

BEEMEHARBE=Z

—t&+-A=+—HILHF
EEMZBET  MEARR
BaEg® (|

BRMBHESEAE165  HE
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HHRR  AEASURERERE 2S5
BAEREMEHAE  BRNEEENA B
W FEARBBRRKEEENRZERE
BRMTEHERE B SHRZEEB
[EREIEE  NOKBEAZEENEE
% A AR R E R SRR
ZHREER  RERERBEEZNE
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of store
premises and warehouses to operate supermarket stores in the
PRC. HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases. which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in note 26, at 31 December 2017 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB1,153 million for properties and other
assets respectively the majority of which is payable either
between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than
5 years. Some of these amounts may need to be recognised
as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new
assets and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for
any leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBME
M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(MARMTREN)
A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ZRNEBEBEZAENREEv%E - EEREAE
five financial years is as follows: MEWT :
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-=% “E-mF “EZ-1F “E-RE it S 3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTR ARBT R ARBT R AR%TR
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 10,881,553 10,911,966 10,660,452 10,085,679 9,655,191
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiAl (E518) /BH 21,121) (23,472) 153 (514,711) 225,252
Income tax FrE% (75,801) (34,972) (18,224) (22,889) (46,212)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ E (E1#8) /&7 (96,922) (58,444) (18,071) (537,600 179,040
Attributable to: T ALER:
Equity shareholders of the A FARE
Company (96,837) (58,428) (17,958) (537,587) 179,040
Non-controlling interests ~ FEiR R (85) (16) (113) (13) -
(Loss)/profit for the year E[E (F1#8) /% F (96,922) (58,444) (18,071) (537,600) 179,040

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B{EREE

Total assets BEE 7,631,416 6,945,156 7,127,637 6,886,213 | 6,874,071
Total liabilities me R (5,561,900)  (4,935,041)  (5,077,616)  (5,363,285)|  (5,184,501)
NET ASSETS HESE 2,069,516 2,010,115 2,050,021 1,522,928 1,689,570

CAPITAL AND RESERVES ¥XJ i

Total equity attributable to A QB REMLERE
equity shareholders of the B

Company 2,067,763 2,008,378 2,048,397 1,522,928 1,689,570
Non-controlling interests ~ JE{ERAEX 1,753 1,737 1,624 - -
TOTAL EQUITY BHAE 2,069,516 2,010,115 2,050,021 1,522,928 1,689,570

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Corporate Information
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Executive Directors
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wen Hai (Executive Chairman)

Mr. Narong Chearavanont (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed (Vice Chairman)

(Resigned on 28 February 2018)
Mr. Michael Ross (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xiaoping (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Audit Committee

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Nomination Committee

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Corporate Governance Committee
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Company Secretary
Ms. Chung Wing Man

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Ms. Chung Wing Man

Registered Office
Cricket Square,

Hutchins Drive,

P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands
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Principal Place of Business FTEEEMY

21st Floor BERERE TSR

Far East Finance Centre BEREMAPL-T 2

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Auditors % ]

Messrs. KPMG EERSHMERA

8th Floor, Prince’s Building HFEHIER

10 Chater Road EITE 5

Central RFRENE

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers FEAREIT

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITHRT (FB)BERAT
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
Share Registrars BHBEERLE

Hong Kong &

Tricor Progressive Limited HEBEEBRAT

Level 22 EREERER-—ANTZ=HR
Hopewell Centre EMPLZ+ =8

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands HEHE

Maples Corporate Services Limited Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309 P.O. Box 309

Ugland House Ugland House

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

KY1-1104 KY1-1104

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

Share Listing % 2 £ 7 ith 2

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited EBABEXREHMAERLAT
Stock Code: 00121 R 3 4X55% © 00121

Company Website NGIE R
http://www.cplotuscorp.com http://www.cplotuscorp.com
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Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2018 —ZE— \FHKER

Annual Results announced 23 February 2018
BN FEXE —E2-)\%-A=-+=H
Annual General Meeting June 2018
BREFKE —E-NERA
2018 Interim Results August 2018
—E-NNERBEE —2 - NEN\A
Financial year end 31 December
MBEELREH iyt
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION EKXRZ#EH
Share Capital % 72 Nominal value
H{E Number of
As at 31 December 2017 HK$ shares HK$’ 000
R-2-+t#+t-A=t+-8 T L TR
Ordinary Shares % & %
Authorised A& 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up E B 1TR#ZE 0.02 11,019,072,390 220,381
Series A Convertible Preference Shares A% 5l Al & IR 8 £ IR
Authorised % E 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B #1TR& 2" 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares BZ 5| TR E LR
Authorised 5% E 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* E 1T R & 2" 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares CZ 5l A& R &8 £ %
Authorised 5% E 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up** B 21T & & 2~ 0.02 3,671,509,764 73,430
Series D Convertible Preference Shares DZ 3l 7[ 2 i & 5t I
Authorised £ & 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 1T R #2* 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228
* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited * HC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
LimitediZ &
**  Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public o B C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited® AR 8

Shareholding =R 2 % of issued

share capital
As at 31 December 2017 Number of shares BEITRA
R-EB—+t&+=-HA=+—H B & ZESHK
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited 6,788,319,021 61.61%
Public & Others X R K& H Aty 4,230,753,369 38.39%
TOTAL % 11,019,072,390 100%

Stock Code K35

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BB 00121
Reuters Reuters 0121 HK
Bloomberg Bloomberg 121 HK
Request for Feedback BRER

Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.com for any comments on our MWMEAQAFZAERBESETAEZE  BEEH
public announcements and disclosures. Zcontact@cplotuscorp.com °
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